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Chairman’s Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group’s sales turnover
decreased by 14.5% to HK$2,015.4 million (2013: HK$2,356.4
million) and the consolidated net profit decreased by 23.3% to
HK$83.5 million (2013: HK$108.8 million). Basic earnings per share
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 was HK24.9 cents
(2013: HKB2.4 cents). The Board of Directors has resolved to
recommend at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting the payment
of a final dividend of HK8 cents (2013: HK10.3 cents) per share for
the year ended 31 March 2014. Together with the interim dividend
of HK2.5 cents per share paid in January this year (2013: HK2.5
cents), the total dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014 will be
HK10.5 cents per share (2013: HK12.8 cents).

Business Review

The Group is engaged in design and manufacturing of a wide range
of household electrical appliances.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, sales turnover decreased in
all three major markets due to slow recovery in the economies
and sluggish consumer sentiments. Although the commodity and
raw material prices have stablized, the benefit was offset by the
continuing increase in labour costs and operating costs in the PRC
and increase in depreciation charges.

During the year under review, sales turnover decreased by 14.5% to
HK$2,015.4 million. Sales turnover to Europe decreased by 11.4%
to HK$1,021.3 million representing 50.7% of the Group’s sales
turnover. Sales turnover to Asia decreased by 9.8% to HK$518.7
million representing 25.7% of the Group’s sales turnover. Sales
turnover to America decreased by 29.7% to HK$383.8 million
representing 19.1% of the Group’s sales turnover. Sales turnover to
other markets increased by 11.4% to HK$91.6 million representing
4.5% of the Group’s sales turnover.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2014 decreased by 13.7%
to HK$244.6 million. Gross profit margin was maintained at 12.0%
compared to last year. The drop in gross profit was mainly attributed
by the increase in labour costs and operating costs in the PRC and
increase in depreciation charges.
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Chairman’s Statement

Business Review (continueq)

The Group continued to apply stringent control on all costs and
expenses. Selling and distribution expenses decreased by 7.0%
to HK$35.4 million. As a percentage to sales turnover, selling and
distribution expenses increased from 1.6% to 1.8% compared to
last year. Administration expenses decreased by 3.6% to HK$138.2
million. As a percentage to sales turnover, administration expenses
increased from 6.1% to 6.9% compared to last year.

During the year, the Group entered into a sale agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of the entire equity interest in
a then wholly-owned subsidiary, Southern Well Holdings Limited
(“Southern Well"), at a cash consideration of RMB43.88 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$55.15 million). Southern Well’'s
principle asset was two parcels of land located in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The transaction was completed
on 30 August 2013. The transaction resulted in an increase in fair
value of HK$23.77 million which was recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year. The property revaluation reserve of HK$12.29 million arising
from change of usage as evidenced by end of owner occupation on
1 December 2011 was transferred to retained profits accordingly.

The investment property located in Wanchai, Hong Kong was
revaluated at HK$218.0 million at 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$210.6
million) giving rise to an increase in fair value of HK$7.4 million in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Currently, all units in this investment property are leased to
third parties.

Net Profit for the year decreased by 23.3% to HK$83.46 million
(2013: HK$108.83 million). Net profit margin decreased from 4.6%
to 4.1% compared to last year.
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Chairman’s Statement

Prospects

Going forward, we believe we would still be facing a lot of
difficulties and uncertainties with regards to political, economic
and business environment. We would continue to strive to face
up to unfavorable conditions such as fierce competition, sluggish
consumer sentiments, rising labour costs and operating costs in the
PRC, appreciation of the Renminbi and shortage of labour supply
in the PRC. We continue to seek growth opportunities through new
customers and new product categories. Stringent cost and expense
control, productivity efficiency improvements, persistence in quality
products and providing excellent service to our customers continue
to be our top priorities. Semi-automation would continue to be
implemented to raise productivity and efficiency at the operations
level.

The Group celebrated its 50th anniversary in business in year 2013.
With our prudent and pragmatic business approach, healthy financial
conditions and commitment to excel, we are confident that we
would sail through the challenges and uncertainties ahead of us in
the coming future.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had total assets of HK$1,726.8
million (2013: HK$1,755.3 million) which was financed by current
liabilities of HK$602.0 million (2013: HK$639.6 million), long-term
liabilities and deferred taxation of HK$77.6 million (2013: HK$109.2
million) and shareholders’ equity of HK$1,047.2 million (2013:
HK$1,006.5 million).

Allan International Holdings Limited ZE @ BB £ B AR A T

ERE®|E

RE

E%*%'$%E@%$%Emﬁﬁﬁﬁ

A REMBRRETENES RN TH
%I% AEBRG BN L BRI
FORBHEBBE TENEH IR
RERA LT ARBHERTESE H#H
R RE TG - AR BKEEE BT
P M EmBRIRSHIE RS o BASEH
RARFEX BELERR BRATEFPR
HELERNEBRBIDAEAEENE R
TE-REEEH AEESEEERYE
i URSEEN BB

AEBR T —=FENLE0BF - '
AEBFEHEREHERE  RENTHN
AR S F M EE R AR B REEH
FE A B0 2RI ) 55 48 7K &2 11 B A P I R 6
PRE AN BEE M o

RBETRMBER

RZE—MF=A=+—H A5EZH
BERITE26808BIL(ZE—=F:17
85,5308 8 7m) - B RRBIERE & 1E6
2008 /B L (— T — = : 6183,9608 /&
7)) KEABGEREERIE7, 7608 BT (=

T—=F 180208 8 T) MR BREZR10(E
472088 0 (ZZE— =4 : 10186508 /&

L) °



Chairman’s Statement

Liquidity and Financial Resources
(Continued)

The Group continued to maintain a strong balance sheet and a
healthy liquidity position. As at 31 March 2014, the Group held
HK$537.7 million (2013: HK$298.6 million) in cash and bank
deposits. They were mainly placed in Renminbi and US dollar
short term deposits, except for temporary balances held in other
currencies as required pending specific payments. For the year
ended 31 March 2014, the Group generated net cash inflow from
operating activities of HK$277.5 million (2013: HK$79.7 million). As
at the same date, total borrowings were HK$111.9 million (2013:
HK$145.7 million) and the gearing ratio (ratio of total borrowings to
shareholders’ equity) was 10.7% (2013: 14.5%).

We continue to apply stringent control over the working capital
cycle. The inventory balance as at 31 March 2014 increased from
HK$85.9 million to HK$100.3 million. The increase in inventory was
mainly due to an increase in stock-in-transit at the year-end date as
compared to the same date in 2013. The trade receivables balance
as at 31 March 2014 decreased from HK$517.4 million to HK$380.2
million. The trade payables balance as at 31 March 2014 decreased
from HK$334.8 million to HK$301.8 million.

Funding for day-to-day operational working capital and capital
expenditures are to be serviced by internal cash flow and
available banking facilities. For the year ended 31 March 2014,
the group invested HK$21.0 million (2013: HK$60.6 million) in
plant and machinery, moulds and tools, equipment, computer
systems and other tangible assets for expansion and upgrade
to our manufacturing facilities. The Group’s capital expenditures
were funded by internal resources and bank loans. The capital
expenditure budget for 2014/15 is approximately HK$75 million.
With a healthy financial position and available banking facilities, the
Group is able to provide sufficient financial resources for our current
commitments, working capital requirements, further expansions
of the Group’s business operations and future investment
opportunities, as and when required.
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Chairman’s Statement

Liquidity and Financial Resources
(Continued)

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business
transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars,
Renminbis, Euros and British Pounds. Currently the Group does
not implement hedging activity to hedge against foreign currency
exposure. However, we will closely monitor foreign currency
exposure and consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March, 2014, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

Currently, the Group employs approximately 4,800 employees. The
majority of our employees work in the PRC. The Group remunerated
our employees based on their performances, experiences and
prevailing market rates while performance bonuses are granted
on a discretionary basis. Share options may also be granted to
employees based on individual performance and attainment of
certain set targets.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our sincere appreciation to our employees, shareholders
and business associates for their continual contribution and support
throughout the year.
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Cheung Lun, aged 86, is the founder and Chairman of the
Group. He has more than 50 years of management and technical
experience in the industry. He is responsible for formulating the
Group’s overall strategic planning and development.

Cheung Shu Wan, aged 53, is the Managing Director of the Group.
He is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined the Group in 1983.
He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science from the University
of London, England. He is responsible for the sales & marketing,
research & development and engineering functions of the Group.
He also assists the Chairman in corporate strategic planning and
development.

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, aged 56, is the Executive Director
of the Group. She is the daughter of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined
the Group in 1984. She obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science
from Kingston Polytechnic, England. She is in charge of the overall
manufacturing operations of the Group.

Cheung Lai See, Sophie, aged 51, is the Executive Director of
the Group. She is the daughter of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined the
Group in 1995. She obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science from
the University of London, England and a master degree in Business
Management from the City University, England. She is responsible
for the financial and administration functions of the Group.

Cheung Pui, aged 66, is the Executive Director of the Group and
joined the Group in 1963. He has over 45 years of experience in the
plastic injection moulding industry. He is responsible for all technical
aspects of plastic injection moulding activities of the Group.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Chan How Chun, aged 59, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in September 2004. She has extensive
experience in accounting, finance and administration. She holds a
Bachelor degree in Commerce and a master degree in Business
Administration from the University of Windsor in Canada and a PhD
degree in Management from the Hong Kong Baptist University.

Lai Ah Ming, Leon, aged 57, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in December 1995. He is a solicitor majoring
in commercial and property works.
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Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-executive Directors
(Continued)

Lo Chung Mau, aged 53, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in November 1997. Professor Lo is a surgeon and
is currently the Chin Lan Hong Professor and Head of Department of
Surgery of the University of Hong Kong.

Senior Management

Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, aged 54, is the Director of Sales.
He is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined the Group in 1983.
He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science from the University
of Wales, England. He is responsible for the sales and business
development function of the Group.

Cheung Shu Sang, William, aged 49, is the Director of Research
and Development. He is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined the
Group in 1994. He holds a BSc degree in Computing Science and
a MSc degree in Management Science, both at Imperial College
London. He also holds a PhD degree in Automation from the
University of Bristol, and is a member of The Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers. He is responsible for the research and development
function of the Group.

Chung Chi Yin, aged 51, is the Director of Engineering and joined
the Group in 1990. He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science in
Product Design and Technology from The Open University of Hong
Kong. He is responsible for the product development of the Group.

Kwok Ka Lee, Carrie, aged 46, is the Director of Manufacturing
and joined the Group in 1990. She obtained a degree in Bachelor
of Business (Transport and Logistics Management) from Royal
Melbourne Institute of Technology. She is responsible for the
manufacturing management and control function of the Group.

Leung Mun Keung, aged 55, is the Director of Manufacturing. He
joined the Group in 1991 and has over 30 years of experience in
manufacturing of electrical home appliances. He is responsible for
the manufacturing management and control function of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management (continued)

Li Wai Ho, aged 50, is the Director of Sales and Marketing
and joined the Group in 2012. He possesses a master degree
in management from Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a
bachelor degree in engineering from Manchester University in United
Kingdom. He has over 17 years of experience in various functions in
Multinational Corporation. He is responsible for sales and marketing
function of the Group.

Tsang Wing Tong, Michelle, aged 47, is the Director of
Manufacturing and joined the Group in 1987. She is responsible for
the manufacturing management and control function of the Group.

Tsui Wing Keung, aged 58, is the Moulds and Tools Manager of
the Group and joined the Group in 1992. He has over 20 years of
experience in plastic injection mould making. He is responsible for
the management of the mould making operation for plastic injection
moulds.

Wong Lai Yung, aged 52, is the Company Secretary and Finance
and Account Manager of the Group and joined the Group in 2006.
She holds a master degree of Business Administration and a master
degree of Corporate Governance from The Open University of Hong
Kong. She also obtained her master degree in Economics from
Jinan University, PRC. Ms. Wong is currently a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Certified Tax Adviser
of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. She is responsible for the
Company’s secretarial duties and financial and accounting aspects
of the Group.

Wong Mei Lin, aged 51, is the Director of Administration and
Personnel and joined the Group in 2000. She obtained a Higher
Certificate in Company Secretaryship and Administration from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. She is responsible for the human
resources and administration management of the Group.

Yasuhiro Terada, aged 52, is the Marketing Manager. He joined the
Group in 1993 and has over 20 years of experience in marketing of
electrical home appliances. He is responsible for the Group’s sales
& marketing functions for Pacific Region (including America and
Japan).
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2014.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 36.

An interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per share amounting to
approximately HK$8,386,000 was paid to the shareholders during
the year. The directors now recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK8 cents per share to the shareholders on the register
of members on 2 September 2014, amounting to approximately
HK$26,835,000, and the retention of the remaining profit for the
year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentage of purchases and sales attributable to the Group'’s
largest suppliers and customers are as follows:

EEEHE

EFERREANARE-F ME=A
=+ - AR FRREREEA MK

EE-
TEXEK

ARB—RREERAR WRHQBE
BR%E HTEMBARcXBHFREAY
B EE M35 °

FEFaA 7

AEBHE—_T-NF=A=1T—HIFE
ZEBERFBA ARG MEMEEKE
% o

FA-REERMNFBAREGR2.55-

AR B 2 58 %) /8,386,000 L - & =
FEMEBENRARESRSELTF
—MMFNAZRBIRREGMARE - BI4Y
26,835,000/ 7T R {R BB #2 T A1) o

TEEFRHER

AEBSZARERREF ZBERIIHER
FriEBE» T

Purchases EEE
— the largest supplier —mAHER 15%
— five largest suppliers combined —RAREEFEET 28%
Sales 5 & 2R
— the largest customer R AEE 43%
— five largest customers combined —RAKRKEEAG 94%
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Directors’ Report

Major Customers and Suppliers (continuead)

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have
an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 132.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

In addition to the retained profits, under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.

In the opinion of the directors, the reserves of the Company which
were available for distribution to shareholders at 31 March 2014
were HK$129,575,000 (2013: HK$130,329,000).

EEEHE

FEXFREER »

BEFE REZBMBEALIER (BERES
GATARE AR RS NRA 2 R ) NFA
RSB EE A A LR E P Z E[

.

.
MR o

PEHME

ERAEBREBREREMBRFEZEE &
ENBEBMEFHNFE132E -

N

EBARB ZRAE B FFHNELRE TR
EEZHfF28 °

FR ARAREMBEARHMEBE LE
HBEARRHE] EHES -

R A AR 7 Ik

BRIRE&EFIN BEBEERE-NLN\—FRF
5 (BETAR) - BARBRITAIHD IR - AR
RITAIERSUR IR B3 m Ik B AR &k -
fid

(@) PEHDIREBEEERIHAE X

b) HAZREEESALINEBEMN
KEBEITRA R EERZ @M -

EERARQNFTR_ZE—NF=A=+—H
A] 95k TR B 2 5 & £129,575,00078 TC
(Z=—=1%:130,329,000/8 7T, ) °
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Directors’ Report

Investment Properties

Details of the movement of investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$21 million
on the acquisition of property, plant and equipment principally to
expand and upgrade its manufacturing facilities. In additions, the
construction of the new plant in Huizhou City, Guangdong Province,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) has been completed
during the year ended 31 March 2013 and therefore no additional
construction costs was capitalised in construction in progress (2013:
HK$2 million) and transferred to furniture, fixtures and equipment
during the year.

Details of these and other movements during the year in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

Directors and Directors’ Service
Contracts

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Cheung Lun

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie
Mr. Cheung Pui

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Chan How Chun

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon

Professor Lo Chung Mau

According to bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Dr. Chan How
Chun and Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie shall retire by rotation at the
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The term of office of each director (except for the Chairman of the
Board and/or the Managing Director) is the period up to his/her
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

None of the directors of the Company proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has any service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

EEEHE

EEREERBEY
FREARERREARAAZEFMT :

BITES
i@ T
RREEE
REBR Lt
KRB
RIFEAE
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EEXHE
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

At 31 March 2014, the interests of the directors and chief executives
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which
were notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (“Model Code”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of ordinary shares held

Personal
Name Capacity interest
i &t AARS
Mr. Cheung Lun Founder of discretionary trust -
RRxE PRETIKIA
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan Beneficial Owner 49,675,335
RERLE ERBEEA
Beneficiary of trust
FiEREA
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie Beneficial Owner 600,000
REYRT ExBRA
Beneficiary of trust
FHEXHA
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Approximate %

FEERTEBRYA of the issued

Other share capital

interest Total  of the Company

fE27

EBTRHZ

At By BAEI

149,049,960 149,049,960 44.44%
(Notg)
(Wit

149,049,960 198,725,295 59.24%
(Notg)
(Hii)

149,049,960 149,649,960 44.61%
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continued B®)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)

Number of ordinary shares held

RABEBREEI0B T ZE

EERFTETHRAERKRMD
MR - EEE S RK

mR (&)

Approximate %

FEERTEBREA of the issued
Personal Other share capital
Name Capacity interest interest Total  of the Company
ERAR
EBTRHZ
i3] &t AARS Hit s fay BHEIL
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie Beneficial Owner 1,258,000 149,049,960 150,307,960 44.81%
REHZL EREBEA (Notg)
Beneficiary of trust (hit)
FiEREA
Mr. Cheung Pui Beneficial Owner 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.30%
RIERE ExBRA
Note: Bat -

The references to 149,049,960 shares relate to the same block of shares
in the Company, of which 134,821,960 shares are held by Allan Investment
Co. Limited (“AICL”), 7,658,000 shares are held by Commence Investment
Limited (“CIL”) and 6,570,000 shares are held by Unison Associates Limited
(“UAL”"). AICL and CIL are owned as to 89.0% and 100% respectively
by UAL. Mr. Cheung Lun is the settlor of The Cheung Lun Family Trust
(“Trust”). Credit Suisse Trust Limited as trustee of the Trust holds 100% of
the shareholding of UAL and the discretionary beneficiaries of the Trust are,
among others, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie and Ms.
Cheung Lai See, Sophie.

bt B3R & 2149,049,96088 AN R R iR 10 B I8
B — A% 19 # 2§ o H #F134,821,9600% A% 17 F 2k 1
REARAA ([RfmIKRE])FEE 7,658,000
BEROBMEREERAR ([MEREDFE
12.6,570,0000% f% 13 B3 Unison Associates Limited
(TUALD B - T mIEE 289.0% = KR £
& Z2100%74 25 RUALE A -5k %o £ R The
Cheung Lun Family Trust ([Trust]) 2 BfE®E T
A ° Credit Suisse Trust LimitedbATrustZ 55 A
H M B100% .2 UALIGHE - Trustz AT BE X 2 A
(BEMA)PEREELE REEZ L RERE
HrZzzt o
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continueq)

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executives,
nor their associates, of the Company had, as at 31 March 2014,
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Share Option Scheme

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

No options have been granted since the adoption of the scheme.
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Directors’ Report

Arrangement to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Other than the share option scheme set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Appointment of Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities
on the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance and Connected
Transactions

Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Conan”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement with
Fair Pacific Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AICL, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which Fair Pacific Limited
granted to Conan a tenancy in respect of certain land in Lilin,
Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone, Huizhou City, the
PRC at a monthly rent of HK$82,000. The tenancy agreement
was for a term of three years commenced from 1 April 2010 and
renewable up to year 2028 on every 5 years. The total amount of
rent paid for the year by the Group in respect of this agreement was
HK$984,000.

Allan Plastics Mfg., Limited (“APML”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with Income
Village Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AICL, pursuant to
which Income Village Limited granted to APML a tenancy in respect
of certain premises in Lilin Village, Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial
Development Zone, Huizhou City, the PRC at a monthly rent of
HK$17,000. The tenancy agreement was for a term of three years
commenced from 1 April 2011. The total amount of rent paid for the
year by the Group in respect of this agreement was HK$204,000.

EEEHE
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EEREARGHNzEaRAE
R
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance and Connected
Transactions (continued)

Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Karan”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with
AICL, pursuant to which AICL granted to Karan a tenancy in respect
of certain premises in Lilin, Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial Development
Zone, Huizhou City, the PRC at a monthly rent of HK$75,000. The
tenancy agreement was for a term of 3 years commenced from 1
April 2011. The total amount of rent paid for the year by the Group in
respect of this agreement was HK$900,000.

HEHEERELBERAT (“EEHE”) , a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with
Mr. Cheung Pui, pursuant to which Mr. Cheung Pui granted to 2[5
3 a tenancy in respect of certain premises in Lilin, Zhongkai Hi-
Tech Industrial Development Zone, Huizhou City, the PRC at a total
monthly rent of RMB45,000 from 1 April 2013 to 30 September
2013 and RMB30,000 from 1 October 2013 onwards. This tenancy
agreement was for a term of 3 years commenced from 1 July 2011.
A new tenancy agreement was signed and commenced on 30
September 2013 for a term of 1.25 year. The total amount of rent
paid for the year by the Group in respect of this agreement was
RMB450,000 (equivalent to HK$567,450).

The independent non-executive directors confirm that the
transactions have been entered into by the Company in the
ordinary course of its business, on normal commercial terms, and
in accordance with the terms of the agreement governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Other than as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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Directors’ Report

Emolument Policy

The Company has set up a remuneration committee. The
remuneration committee is responsible for developing the
remuneration policy and reviewing the remuneration packages of
the directors and senior management and make recommendations
to the Board which are determined by reference to the performance
of the individuals, the Group, market practices and conditions with
a view to retain and motivate executives to pursue the Group’s
operation.

Substantial Shareholders

So far is known to any director or chief executive of the Company,
at 31 March 2014, shareholders (other than directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
or had otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

Long positions of substantial shareholders in the shares of
the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity

BRREE 287)

Credit Suisse Trust Limited Trustee
BEEA

UAL Held by controlled corporation
FriZESl 2 AR R
Beneficial Owner
EnBEAA

AICL Beneficial Owner

TRIRE EnBEAA

EEEHE

S

ARFERIHMERE -HMERRAR
HEFHBRERR I EERTREREY
FB THEERRREE REERNET
2RE REEZEE DHEMRTRE
BRI BRI S TRE AN EE
% -

FERR

RARREERRSTHAEMMA R-F
—ME=A=+—H RERFRMH KB
By B IREBE S KB GROIFEXVEE2
K FE37 BRI SRR AN A B B BB sk Re &
RRBIRES R ERGIEIBHREFNE
EMAREMERARNERIAE Z KR
(RAREZHHZTHABRIN T :

FTERRRADARD2HR

Approximate

Number of % of
ordinary shares shareholding
tREZ

EBRR G BAE
149,049,960 44.44%
142,479,960 42.48%
6,570,000 1.96%
134,821,960 40.19%
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Directors’ Report

Substantial Shareholders (continueq)

Long positions of substantial shareholders in the shares of
the Company (Continued)

Name of shareholder Capacity

BRREMH L4

Beneficial Owner
EanEAA
Held by controlled corporation

Pzl z AERA

Webb, David Michael

Preferable Situation Assets Limited Beneficial Owner

Note:

The reference to 27,905,000 shares above are held by Preferable Situation
Assets Limited, a company 100% controlled by Mr. Webb, David Michael.
According to a notice filed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, the shareholding
of Preferable Situation Assets Limited in the Company was increased from
26,886,000 shares to 27,905,000 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, the Company
has not been notified by any persons (other than directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Report

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately HK$258,000.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices of the Company is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 24 to 33.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors, the directors confirm that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 March 2014 as required by the Listing Rules.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Lun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital
to the success of the Group and the sustained development of the
Group. The Company aims at complying with, where appropriate, all
code provisions set out in Appendix 14 Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) as set out in
the CG Code of the Listing Rules. The Company has, throughout
the year ended 31 March 2014 and up to the date of publication
of the annual report, applied and complied with most of the Code
Provisions save certain deviations from the Code Provisions in
respect of code provisions A4.1, A.4.2, A5.1, A.6.7 and E.1.2
details of which are explained below.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Company (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has
made specific enquiry to all Directors regarding any non-compliance
with the Model Code during the year under review and they have all
confirmed that they had fully complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code.

Board of Directors

The Board comprises of five Executive Directors, being Mr. Cheung
Lun (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Shu Wan (Managing Director), Ms.
Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie and Mr.
Cheung Pui; three Independent Non-executive Directors, being Dr.
Chan How Chun, Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon and Professor Lo Chung
Mau. Biographical details, which include relationships among
members of the Board, are provided in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section of the annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors (continueq)

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board is
responsible for:

° Formulating the Group’s long term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof

° Approval of interim and year end dividend

° Reviewing and approving the annual and interim reports
° Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance

° Monitoring the performance of the management

° Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and assets
disposal

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategies
that have been approved.

The Board meets regularly at least four times a year and additional
meetings or telephone conferences are convened as and when the
Board considers necessary. During the year, four board meetings
were held. Details of the Directors’ attendance record in the year are
as follows:

Attendance/

Executive Directors No. of meeting

Mr. Cheung Lun 4/4
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan 4/4
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie 4/4
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie 4/4
Mr. Cheung Pui 4/4

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chan How Chun 4/4
Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon 4/4
Professor Lo Chung Mau 4/4
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Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors (continueq)

The Company has complied with the Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent Non-executive Directors and one of the Independent
Non-executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related finance management expertise. Each
of the Independent Non-executive Director has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent
Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has arranged for Directors and officers liability
insurance to indemnity its Directors against liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Board considered that the duties of the Managing Director
(“MD”) were no different from that required of a chief executive
stipulated under the code provision A.2 of the Code. The
management would regard that the term MD will have the same
meaning as the chief executive of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director, who is
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the Board,
and ensuring that all significant and key issues are discussed and
where required, resolved by the Board timely and constructively.

The MD of the Board is delegated with the authority and
responsibility to run the Group’s business and day-to-day operation,
and implement the Group’s strategy with respect to the achievement
of its business objectives with the assistance of the Executive
Directors and senior management.
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Corporate Governance Report

Appointment and Re-election of
Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Currently, none of the three independent non-executive directors
of the Company is appointed for a specific term. This constitutes
a deviation from the CG Code. In accordance with the provisions
of the Bye-laws of the Company, any director appointed by the
Board during the year shall retire and submit themselves for re-
election at the first general meeting immediately following his/her
appointment. Further, at each annual general meeting, one-third of
the directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one-
third, shall retire from office. The directors to retire by rotation shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last re-election
or appointment. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are similar to those in the CG Code.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the
next following annual general meeting after their appointment, and
every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Chairman and/or
Managing Director is not subject to retirement by rotation or taken
into account on determining the number of Directors to retire. This
constitutes a deviation from the CG Code. As continuation is a key
factor to the successful implementation of any long term business
plans, the Board believes that, the present arrangement is most
beneficial to the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Training

All Directors participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
All Directors participate in appropriate continuous professional
development activities by ways of attending training or reading
material relevant to the Company’s business or to the Directors’
duties and responsibilities. During the year ended 31 March 2014,
the Company has provided an update on the latest development
and changes of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and
regulations relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities to each
of Mr. Cheung Lun, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun,
Maggie, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, Mr. Cheung Pui, Dr. Chan
How Chun, Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon and Professor Lo Chung Mau to
keep themselves update on the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and comprises
three Board members, all of whom are Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Audit Committee has adopted the same term
of reference, which describes the authority and duties of the
Committee, as quoted under code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee will meet at least twice each year. During the
year, the Audit Committee met twice considering the annual results
of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March 2014 and the
interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended 30 September
2013, assessing any changes in accounting policies and practices,
major judgmental areas and compliance with applicable legal and
accounting requirements and standards, discussing with the auditor
of the Company on internal control.

Details of Committee members and their attendance records are
listed as below:

Attendance/

Committee member No. of meeting

Dr. Chan How Chun (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Lai Ah Ming Leon 2/2
Professor Lo Chung Mau 2/2
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Corporate Governance Report

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 12 March 2012
with written terms of reference as stated in Code B.1.3 of the
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee
consists of three members, majority of which are Independent Non-
executive Directors. Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon, being an Independent
Non-executive Director, acts as the chairman. Dr. Chan How Chun,
an Independent Non-executive Director and Ms. Cheung Lai See,
Sophie, an Executive Director, are the Committee Members.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal
and transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies
and overseeing the remuneration packages of all Directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendation to the Board for the determination of the
remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board for the directors’ fee of non-
executive directors. It takes into account factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies with similar size and trade,
education background and qualification of each Director and senior
management, time commitment and responsibilities of Directors and
senior management.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has held one meeting.
Attendance of each individual member was as follows:

Attendance/

Committee member No. of meeting

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon (Chairman) 1/1
Dr. Chan How Chun 11
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie 11

Details on the emolument payable to the Directors and the
Company’s share option scheme are disclosed in notes 9 and 29 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report

Nomination of Directors

Code Provision A.5.1 stipulates that the Company should establish
a nomination committee. Currently, the Company does not
have a nomination committee. The Board will identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members when necessary. The
Board will give due consideration to the suitability of a candidate
for directorship after taking into account of his/her experience,
qualification and other relevant factors. All candidates must also
meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing
Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director should also meet the independence criteria set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management; review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to employees
and Directors; and review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Company Secretary

Ms. Wong Lai Yung joined the Company since 2006 and was
appointed as the Company Secretary on 20 September 2012. Ms.
Wong is responsible to update and provide advice to the Board in
relation to directors’ obligations under the Listing Rules, applicable
laws and regulations, and corporate governance matters. Ms. Wong
has provided her training records to the Company indicating her
compliance with the training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. Ms. Wong’s biographical details are provided in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section of the annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Director’s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statement

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility for (i)
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and (i) selecting suitable
accounting policies and applying the selected accounting policies
consistently with the support of reasonable and prudent judgement
and estimates.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
set out on pages 34 to 35 of this Annual Report.

Auditor’s Remuneration
During the year under review, the remuneration payable to the
Company’s auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as

follows:

Services rendered Fees payable

HK$'000

Audit services 1,989
Non-audit services

Review of interim results 291

Taxation services 263

Audit of occupational retirement scheme 24

Internal Controls

The Board has the ultimate responsibility to maintain a sound and
effective internal control system for the Group to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and the Group as a whole and to ensure
strict compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations. The
Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal control system and reporting to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

Internal Controls (continueq)

The Group’s internal control system comprises a well established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and standards.
Areas of responsibilities for each business and functional unit are
clearly defined to ensure effective checks and balances. Procedures
have been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised
use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting records; and
for ensuring the reliability of financial information used within the
business or for publication. The procedures provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.
Procedures have also been designed to ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During the year, the Audit Committee and the Board carried out an
overview on the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group. The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group. No material internal control aspects of any significant
problems were noted. Both the Audit Committee and the Board
were satisfied that the internal control system of the Group had
functioned effectively during the year under review. During the
annual review, the audit committee also reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

Shareholders’ Rights

On the requisition of shareholders of the Company holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company, the Board
may convene a special general meeting to address specific issues
of the Company within 21 days from the date of deposit of written
notice to the registered office of the Company. The requisition must
state the purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionist(s).

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders or not less than 100 shareholders may
propose any resolution at the annual general meeting and circulate
to other shareholders written statement with respect to the matter to
be dealt with at the annual general meeting.

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
office address at 12/F, Zung Fu Industrial Building, 1067 King’s
Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report

Communication with Shareholders

The Company regards its Annual General Meeting as an opportunity
for direct communication between the Board and its shareholders.
All Directors and external auditors make an effort to attend the
Annual General Meeting to address shareholders’ queries. The
Company also responds to requests for information and queries
from the shareholders and investors and welcomes the views of
shareholders on matter affecting the Group and encourages them
to attend shareholders’ meeting to communicate any concerns they
might have with the Board.

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors shall attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders.

Two independent non-executive directors, Dr. Chan How Chun and
Professor Lo Chung Mau, did not attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 21 August 2013 due to other business
engagements.

Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the Board
and the chairman of the Audit Committee should attend the annual
general meeting. Both the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman
of the Audit Committee had not attended the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 21 August 2013. The Chairmen
will endeavour to attend all future annual general meetings of the
Company unless unexpected or special circumstances prevent them
from doing so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF
ALLAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
TRERERERRAF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Allan
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 36 to 131,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2014,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or

Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2014

SERBER
Hih 2w RmR

(E_T-MFE=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—Z-mF —T—=%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET
Revenue EER 7 2,015,405 2,356,362
Cost of sales RN (1,770,775) (2,072,739)
Gross profit E7 244,630 283,623
Other income H Ath 5 8 10,207 8,346
Other gains and losses Ha B F & EE 10 (5,095) (5,625)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE Ko SR AR (35,370) (38,044)
Administrative expenses TR AR (138,171) (143,347)
Increase in fair value of investment WEYEZ A EEEM
properties 31,166 SiSRAf
Interest on bank borrowings |ITEFF S (2,048) (2,934)
Profit before tax B 152 AT A 105,319 133,130
Income tax expense RS 12 (21,862) (24,304)
Profit for the year attributable to owners ZANEE R D B4 A RIHEA A
of the Company 2 Y A 83,457 108,826
Other comprehensive income: Hith 2 mEkE:
Item that may be subsequently HEGEEEN 7 BE»EE -
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on MEEZ2IEEZERLER
translation 219 BE3ES
Net adjustments on available-for-sale At HERE 2 AL TR
investments (178) (56)
Other comprehensive income N GF 2 H th 2 T Y s
for the year, net of income tax g FUA 41 6,279
Total comprehensive income for the year A4 & 2 Uk 25458 83,498 115,105

Earnings per share AT
Basic R
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 March 2014

2014 2013
—E-MmF —FT—=%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties REYE 16 218,000 242,100
Property, plant and equipment Y% BE k& 17 337,705 397,277
Prepaid lease payments FENEEKIE 18 27,104 27,835
Club debentures eHEES 19 13,866 13,866
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 20 9,217 12,467
Financial assets designated at fair BREREAFETE
value through profit or loss MBEE
(“FVTPL”) 21 5,480 5,342
Deposits paid for acquisition of BENEEME  BE K
property, plant and equipment HEF 6,177 2,878
617,549 701,765
Current assets MENE E
Inventories BE 22 100,250 85,888
Trade receivables and bills receivable EWE 5 R & W R IR 23 380,221 517,386
Other receivables H A & U AR K 23 60,878 128,335
Mould deposits paid ENEA® 20,375 18,563
Prepaid lease payments A HERKIE 18 721 706
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 20 2,342 3,096
Tax recoverable R FHIE 6,708 962
Time deposits and deposits placed EHFREFRRITR
with banks and financial institutions © BT 24 280,761 139,377
Bank balances and cash RITHEELE2 24 256,982 159,261
1,109,238 1,053,574
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade payables and bills payable BB SRR KEMNEE 25 301,786 334,825
Other payables and accruals E At e BR B R B R AT 168,747 175,090
Mould deposits received BWEERT® 39,007 34,052
Tax payable JE#1E 45,780 41,468
Secured bank loans BIRHETER
— due within one year ——F AN EH 26 46,728 54,129
602,048 639,564
Net current assets MENE EFE 507,190 414,010
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR 1,124,739 1,115,775
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
At 31 March 2014

Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Deferred tax liabilities IEIERIE
Secured bank loans BEMFEITER

— due after one year ——F1& ?'J HR

Net assets EEFE

Capital and reserves BARNFE
Share capital AR
Reserves Tt

The consolidated financial statements on pages 36 to 131 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25
June 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
REY
Director

EF

Allan International Holdings Limited Z= & Bl B2 & B A BR 2 &

2014 2013
—F-mFE  —F=

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

HtaE F#ET F#ET

27 12,423 17,719

26 65,150 91,528

77,573 109,247

1,047,166 1,006,528

28 33,543 33,543

1,013,623 972,985

1,047,166 1,006,528

HNFEBAZINEZHEETBEREEZER

“E-EFERATHREESERERRK
B YHTFINEERREE

Cheung Lai See, Sophie
REHT
Director

EBEF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2014

At 1 April 2012
Profit for the year

Exchange difference arising
on translation

Fair value gain on available-for-sale
investments

Investment revaluation reserve
released on disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Other comprehensive (expense)
income for the year

Total comprehensive (expense)
income for the year

Dividend proposed for 2013
(note 14)

Dividends recognised as
distribution (note 74)

At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013

Profit for the year

Exchange difference arising
on translation

Fair value gain on available-for-sale
investments

Investment revaluation reserve
released on disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Other comprehensive (expense)
income for the year

Total comprehensive (expense)
income for the year

Release of property revaluation
reserve on disposal of
an investment property held
by a subsidiary (note 17)

Dividend proposed for 2014 (note 14)

Dividends recognised as

distribution (note 74)
Unclaimed dividend forfeited

At 31 March 2014

RZE--#WA—-H
RERRT

% 2IE%2
EXZR
Tﬁﬁﬁkéﬁ@¥@
2B
REEMFHBRHE
AfHERARES

REEEME
Wz

& (5i)

AEERE (X H)
WE e

BEE-_2-=£RS
(Hiit14)
AEARZIRE
(Hiit14)

WZE-=%
EET—ER
“E-ZFEMA-A

REREM
ﬁ B

EXER
T#%%hﬁﬂ AEZ
REBRERENNE

AL ERARSBN

AEERBRE
() g

AER2HE (Xih)
RaEeR

W%mﬂhﬁhﬁ%%

EEE S A
(Hiz#11)
BEX-Z-MERS
(Hiit14)
AEARZIRE
(Hiit14)
SREAREZRE

RZZ-ME=f=+-H

mEEmSER

2 E—NFE=A=+—HILFE

Capital  Investment Property

Share Share redemption  revaluation  revaluation  Translation Dividend Retained

capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
) A& RE nE
&S #ER RERE EMEE EMRE  ERXRE  RERE  REEA it
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET FET FET FET FET FET FET TET FET
33,643 109,884 793 791 12,292 33,625 41,929 708,981 941,738
- - - - - - - 108,826 108,826
- - - - - 6,335 - - 6,335
- - - 344 - - - - 344
- - - (400) - - - - (400)
- - - (56) - 6,335 - - 6,279
- - - (56) - 6,335 - 108,826 115,106
- - - - - - 34,550 (34,550) -
i = - - - - (41,929) (8,386) (50,315)
33,643 109,884 793 735 12,292 39,860 34,550 774,871 1,006,528
- - - - - - - 83,457 83,457
- - - - - 219 - - 219
- - - 352 - - - - 352
- - - (530) - - - - (630)
- - - (178) - 219 - - 4
- - - (178) - 219 - 83,457 83,498
- - - - (12,292) - - 12,292 -
. H = k) - - 26,835 (26,835) =
- - - - - - (34,550) (8,386) (42,936)
- - - - - - - 76 76
33,643 09,884 793 557 - 40,079 26,835 835,475 1,047,166
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Consolidated Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2014

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Increase in fair value changes of
investment properties
Interest expenses
Interest income
Net gain on disposal of
available-for-sale investments
Net gain on financial assets
designated at FVTPL
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Write-off of property,
plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Decrease (increase) in trade
receivables and bills receivable
Decrease (increase) in other receivables
(Increase) decrease in mould
deposits paid
Decrease in trade payables and
bills payable
Decrease in other payables and accruals
Increase (decrease) in mould
deposits received

Cash generated from operations

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

The People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) enterprise income tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

40 Allan International Holdings Limited T2 f@

of Cash Flows

mERERER

s —ps— e = Bl =ne— g |[E4EE

Note
Bz
KETH
BR3¢ A1 g A
kX

B R E IR
ME- -BEERBIINE

BREME 2 RN ESEEM

B X H
B HA
HERHELERERNFE

FERBEREATEAEZ
MIEEERNFER
HEWME BEEREZ

gl

WERYE - BB K& R

LEECEBNCKLRTRE

& (S )

o B 55 5 R L R b
M (10

S ft IR FOR > (4 01)
EATRAES (#10) R

v
&

FE B 5 R R e R iR A
H At 8 A< AR R e B AN R AR

BUE Rz EEm ORd)

REXBGEEZR®
ENEENER
EffFEARLME ([HE])
EEFRSH

RETHREEZRSFR

B EEARAF

2014 2013
—ZE - —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
105,319 133,130
721 706
78,548 74,746
(31,166) (31,111)
2,048 2,934
(2,369) (1,847)
(530) (400)
(138) 672)
(1,080) (537)
584 95
151,937 177,044
(14,362) 7,893
137,165 (8,033)
67,450 (21,001)
(1,812) 3,682
(33,039) (50,494)
(11,563) (7,018)
4,955 (1,042)
300,731 101,031
(19,386) (15,599)
(3,860) (5,706)
277,485 79,726




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2014

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Withdrawal of time deposits and
deposits placed with banks and
financial institutions

Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary

Proceeds on disposal/redemption of
available-for-sale investments

Interest received

Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Placement of time deposits and
deposits placed with banks and
financial institutions

Purchases of property, plant and
equipment

Deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Purchases of available-for-sale
investments

Proceeds on redemption of
financial assets at FVTPL

Investment income from financial
assets at FVTPL

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid

Repayment of borrowings
Interest paid

New bank borrowings raised
Unclaimed dividend received

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR, represented
by bank balances and cash

mERERER

BE—T-NE=A=1+—HIFE

Note
Bz
REEH
REUE IR R EFRIRIT R
S REET K
HE— KB AR TERIE 11

HE BEAHEERE

2 W2
HEWE BB RRERERIEA

FRREMERRFRRITR
T RS

BEYE BENMRE
ENBEYME BEEREB®

BEAHLERE
HEBLERRERATE
AHEZMBEE IR

BRBRRATEAEZ
BREKRA

REFBMER S FE

BMEEH

EEE

EEER

E 7S

H IR IR1TE R

LQEE YN Pl O
BMEEBAERSFE

RERREEEEMORD) FE

RENZRERAEEHEEE

SHEERBCHTE

REGZHRESRASEE
HE HEERRTEFLRS
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2014 2013
—E-mEF =
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FETT FET
406,772 286,022
55,147 =
9,116 -
2,369 1,847
1,443 1,803
(548,156) (255,716)
(16,831) (50,864)
6,177) (2,878)
(4,760) (6,658)
= 3,375
- 8E)
(101,077) (23,036)
(42,936) (50,315)
(33,779) (84,779)
(2,048) (2,934)
- 51,000
76 =
(78,687) (87,028)
97,721 (30,338)
159,261 188,700
= 899
256,982 159,261




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

General

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The immediate holding company is Allan
Investment Company Limited, a private company incorporated
in Hong Kong; and its ultimate holding company is Credit
Suisse Trust Limited, who is a trustee of The Cheung Lun
Family Trust (“Trust”) and the discretionary beneficiaries of
the Trust are, among other family members, the directors of
the Company (the “Directors”), Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, Ms.
Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie and Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services to its subsidiaries.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are manufacture and
distribution of household electrical appliances.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs
The Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year.

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011

Cycle
Amendments to Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and
HKFRS 7 Financial Liabilities
Amendments to Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint
HKFRS 10, Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests in
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Other Entities: Transition Guidance
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income

HKAS 19 (Revised 2011) Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011) Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (Revised 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine
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HEH )

ST RASHTE B BRE A2
3

RAFE ARBEEARBUTEE
BRI AR B M REETE
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ERMBREEN  RAPBHRE
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BRMBEREEN  ATEHE

F13%%
ERGHENEIR Ho2EKEERZ2Y
ZIEFIAR
BEEEASE19% EEEF
(R=F——F

BET)
BEE SR BUBBHRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) continueq)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in the
financial statements.

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures comprising
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, HKFRS 11
Joint Arrangements, HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities, HKAS 27 (Revised 2011) Separate Financial
Statements and HKAS 28 (Revised 2011) /nvestments in
Associates and Joint Ventures, together with the amendments
to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding transitional
guidance.

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011) is not applicable to the Group
as it deals only with separate financial statements. HKFRS
11, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (Revised 2011) are also not
applicable to the Group as there are no investments in joint
ventures, subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests and
associates.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out
below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) continueq)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) Int-12 Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 changes the definition
of control such that an investor has control over an investee
when a) it has power over the investee, b) it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and c) has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
All three of these criteria must be met for an investor to have
control over an investee. Previously, control was defined as
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Additional
guidance has been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an
investor has control over an investee.

The Directors reviewed and assessed whether they have
control over all the existing subsidiaries in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 10. The Directors concluded that there
is no impact on the Group’s control over the subsidiaries after
the application of HKFRS 10 and all the subsidiaries continue
to be consolidated in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) «continuea)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of
guidance for, and disclosures about, fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair value measurement
requirements of HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value (e.g.
net realisable value for the purposes of measuring inventories
or value in use for impairment assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price
that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer
a liability, in the case of determining the fair value of a
liability) in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current
market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13
includes extensive disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance
with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group has
not made any new disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the
2013 comparative period (please see notes 6 and 16 for the
2014 disclosures). Other than the additional disclosures, the
application of HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

46  Allan International Holdings Limited Z= & BB &£ B AR A &

HAREETERBMBRELE 2
PR (&)

BB BHERERF13H A FlEE
AEBRAEFEEERXRABT B BER
SERNEIFR-FEMBREERE
1R EEAFEFEREECE
—155| - BB RELERF 1357 2 8
BEZ  BAMBHREENFIR A
FEFEREERAREMEE YR
SEAREXIATAVFEFERERH
NFEFEFRBEZEMTAER MIF
TRTAER  EFEMBRELNS
WA R IE B ETEZ T A EBE R 2 AR
RAER INHRS BB EAE
1TRHEREANZHER 5 LEUR
FEELFAFEZE (DI E

FEMmE < &R FELBERN G
mE < ERERE)RIN-

BEVHEHRELENFIBRBGEELR
FEAESERFMSRR TREE
BME—EX2 (XZFENN) mHK
EFRXZEE—HEERRIMZER
(HMHREERBEZAFE A SEER
BERKXNZER) - REEBHH
WEERNE13H T EREEERE
ABRNIER S —HEET AL MG
AORFER/FRER MIN BEY
BHmEERE1REHAEFEZNORE
ME °

FAEY B HE LR F13RBLKFALE
A IRIEBRB Y BRELERE135R 2B
BIER AEE W ESH S —T—=F
Lo B HA R 4% B 8 B 7 R 5 HE B 51 35%
MMREFEREAFHEE (AT
FREHE FLHMEFORF16
R) BREINEEIN BB BT W
=R FABRI M GRS W R R P
ERAZERBREMERTE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) continueq)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
“Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income”.
Upon the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1, the
Group’s “statement of comprehensive income” is renamed
as the “statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income”. Furthermore, the amendments to HKAS 1 require
additional disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive
income section such that items of other comprehensive
income are grouped into two categories: (a) items that
will not be reclassified to profit or loss and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis — the amendments do not change the option to present
items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net
of tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than
the above mentioned presentation changes, the application
of the amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact
on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) continueq)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21

Investment Entities'

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions?

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosures®

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities'

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets'

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 -
2012 Cycle*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 -
2013 Cycle?

Financial Instruments®

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Levies'
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) continueq)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

2 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will

be determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are
finalised.

¥ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,
with limited exceptions.

o Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning
on or after 1 January 2016.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions
and (i) add
definitions for “performance condition” and “service condition”

of “vesting condition” and “market condition”;

which were previously included within the definition of “vesting
condition”. The amendments to HKFRS 2 are effective for
share-based payment transactions for which the grant date is

on or after 1 July 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) continueq)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle
(Continueqd)

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability should
be measured at fair value at each reporting date, irrespective
of whether the contingent consideration is a financial
instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a
non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other than
measurement period adjustments) should be recognised in
profit and loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose
the judgements made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria to operating segments, including a
description of the operating segments aggregated and the
economic indicators assessed in determining whether the
operating segments have ‘similar economic characteristics’;
and (i) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the reportable
segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should only be
provided if the segment assets are regularly provided to the
chief operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS
18 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove
the ability to measure short-term receivables and payables
with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) continueq)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle
(Continueqd)

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated
depreciation/amortisation when an item of property, plant and
equipment or an intangible asset is revalued. The amended
standards clarify that the gross carrying amount is adjusted
in a manner consistent with the revaluation of the carrying
amount of the asset and that accumulated depreciation/
amortisation is the difference between the gross carrying
amount and the carrying amount after taking into account
accumulated impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management
entity providing key management personnel services to
a reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity.
Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose as related
party transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid
or payable to the management entity for the provision of key
management personnel services. However, disclosure of the
components of such compensation is not required.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) continueq)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types
of joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted
for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9, even if those
contracts do not meet the definitions of financial assets or
financial liabilities within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and
HKFRS 3 are not mutually exclusive and application of both
standards may be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring
investment property must determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment property
in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) continueq)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle
(Continueqd)

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011 - 2013 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition and further amended in
2013 to include the new requirement of hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ,.v\'\é‘,EJJ B E B

For the year ended 31 March 2014

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) «continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

CEM N RERNHIT REBRTE

(Continued) B EREER (&)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continueqd) BEEBUBEFEERAFINHT A
(%)

° With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at FVTPL, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as FVTPL
was presented in profit or loss.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types
of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for
hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle of an “economic
relationship”. Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness
is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements
about an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 April 2015. Based on the analysis of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March
2014, the adoption of HKFRS 9 will affect the classification and
measurement of the Group’s available-for-sale investments
and is not likely to have significant impact on the amounts
of the Group’s other financial assets and financial liabilities.
Regarding the Group’s available-for-sale investments, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until
a detailed review has been completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties include
land held for undetermined future use, which is regarded as
held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure, or at deemed cost
representing fair value at the date of transfer from property,
plant and equipment and prepaid lease payment upon change
in usage as evidence by end of owner-occupation. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases), other than construction in
progress, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of the reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or for
its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried at
cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase under the standard.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL, of which interest income is excluded in net gains or
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets and is
included in the other gains and losses line item. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 6c¢.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables and bills receivable,
other receivables, time deposits and deposits placed with
banks and financial institutions and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL,
or loans and receivables. Debt securities held by the Group
that are classified as available-for-sale and are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in
the carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated using the effective
interest method and dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in
the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investment revaluation reserve. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables and bills receivable, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit
period of 90 days, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and bills receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable and a bill receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not be
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit or
loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of
the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade payables and bills payable,
other payables and secured bank loans) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-in,
first-out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

3. EESHHEE #

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

3. EESFHHEE #

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

If an item of prepaid lease payments becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end
of owner-occupation, any difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (continueq)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the Directors have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties are not
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on
investment properties, the Directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has
not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of
investment property in Hong Kong as the Group is not subject
to any income taxes on disposal of its investment properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (continueq)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Investment properties

As described in note 16, investment properties are stated at
fair value based on the valuation performed by independent
professional valuers. In determining the fair value, the valuers
have used a method of valuation which involves certain
estimates. In relying on the valuation report, the management
has exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions. If there are changes in the assumptions used
for the valuation, the fair value of the investment properties
will change in future. As at 31 March 2014, the carrying
amount of investment properties was HK$218,000,000 (2013:
HK$242,100,000). Details are set out in note 16.

Depreciation

The carry value of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
as at 31 March 2014 was HK$337,705,000 (2013:
HK$397,277,000). The Group depreciates the property, plant
and equipment on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 3 to 25 years, or over the lease terms, after
taking into account their estimated residual value, commencing
from the date the property, plant and equipment is available
for use. The estimated useful lives and dates that the Group
places the property, plant and equipment into productive use
reflects the Directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. If the estimated useful
life of property, plant and equipment did not reflect its actual
useful life, additional depreciation may be required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (continueq)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group looks for
other appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurement.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. Notes 6¢ and
16 provide detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the
fair value of various assets and liabilities.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes bank loans, net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4E

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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5. Capital Risk Management (continuea) 5.

The Directors review the capital structure on a quarterly basis.

As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital

and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based

on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance

its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends

and new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the

redemption of existing debt.

6. Financial Instruments

6a. Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

Loans and receivables (including
cash and cash equivalents)

Available-for-sale investments

Financial assets designated at FVTPL

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

6.
MEEE
B 5 UK BR 3R
(BERERBEEE)
AHHERE
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M AR
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F7%5 B R SH AR

BEXARMERE 2
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BEAHBERR - REEZMHER
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ST A
6a. &@t I
2014 2013
—F-mF e
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FETT FET
970,293 935,637
11,559 (5,568
5,480 5,342
413,820 480,771
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6. €I A (%

6b. BKEREEEERKE
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6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, financial assets
designated at FVTPL, trade receivables and bills
receivable, other receivables, time deposits and deposits
placed with banks and financial institutions, bank
balances and cash, trade payables and bills payable,
other payables and secured bank loans. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and

other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which exposes the Group
to foreign currency risk. Over 98% (2013: 97%) of the
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entity making the
sale.

The Group currently does not implement hedging activity
to hedge against foreign currency exposure. However,
the management closely monitors foreign currency
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

6. Financial Instruments (continueq) 6. EMIT AR #®
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. MKEMEEBEREE (&)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) SRR (&)
Currency risk (Continued) ExEf (&)

RMERERE  REBAINE
AEZEREENEREELR

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at

the end of the reporting period are as follows: AEL T :
Liabilities Assets
=R BE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—®-OEF —F-=F =¥ WmF —FT-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT FET FETT
United States dollar (“USD”) 7T 39,220 25,255 655,019 630,647
Euro (“EUR?) B 78 227 1,219 897 1,664
Renminbi (“RMB”) AR - - 87,251 61,980

Assets and liabilities denominated in USD, EUR and RMB
mainly represents time deposits and deposits placed
with banks and financial institutions, trade receivables/
payables, bills receivable/payable and other receivables/
payables held by the Group.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to exchange rate
fluctuations of USD, EUR and RMB against the functional
currency of respective group entities, which is either
HK$ or RMB. As HK$ is pegged to USD, the exposure
to fluctuations in exchange rate of HK$ against USD is
considered insignificant and thus the effect on group
entities using HK$ as their functional currencies is not
considered in the sensitivity analysis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 3% (2013: 3%) increase and decrease in functional
currency of respective group entities against the
relevant foreign currencies except for EUR, of which
20% (2013: 20%) increase and decrease is used due
to the Europe Sovereign Debt Crisis which leads to
significant fluctuation on EUR. These percentages are the
sensitivity rates used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represent
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 3% change in foreign currency rates, for the
case of EUR, 20% (2013: 20%). A positive (negative)
number below indicates an increase (decrease) in post-
tax profit where the functional currencies of respective
group entities weaken 3% (EUR: 20%) against the
relevant currencies. For a 3% (2013: 3%), or in the
case of EUR, 20% (2013: 20%), strengthening of the
functional currencies of respective group entities against
the relevant currencies, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit.
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Impact of EUR

MEEBEEEERBE (&)

hEEE (&)

BRI (E)
TRFNAERAEEENEEE
ERNEEEERLBE (KREBZE
A BRI == 4 (5 75 1 8 SRR
BEBREAEES HETHEESAE
20% (ZZE—=F:20%) )Jh K&
ERFTEE% (ZFE—=F:
3% ) ZHREE -ZEB AL AR
RBEZEE A BERINE R
FTAZBERER U AESEEBHIE
KA EE T - HEAE
DMEBRBEUINETE 2 MET
MEMER TRFRAERLR
H AR B HNEE B R 2 3% - BR AR
E20% (ZTE—=F:20%) 2%
BTy EH (BB XRTEEE
BRI EKERBAINEESS
3% (BRZE :20% ) - S EEEE
T8 & ¥ K AR R SN ok (R an 8
83% (T — =% :3%)HEA
20% (ZE—=F:20%) ' #B&
HnFEKBEERBR ZFE-

Impact of RMB

BENE ARBHE
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE —T-—= —E2-mE —T—=
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHE T FET
Profit or loss for the year — ZNE x5l 18 112 74 2,186 1,658

The above is mainly attributable to the exposure to time
deposits and deposits placed with banks and financial
institutions, outstanding receivables and payables at the
year end.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6. TR &

6b. MEEBEEBEFERBE (&)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate time deposits and deposits placed
with banks and financial institutions.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate secured bank loans. The
Group currently does not enter into any interest rate
swaps to convert floating rate to fixed rate obligations.
However, the management closely monitors interest rate
change exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate change exposure should the need arise.

The management considers the cash flow interest rate in
relation to variable-rate bank balances is insignificant and
therefore no sensitivity analysis on such risk has been
prepared.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
secured bank loans at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the secured bank
loans outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis point
(2013: 10 basis point) increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis point (2013: 10 basis
point) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended
31 March 2014 would decrease/increase by HK$93,000
(2013: decrease/increase by HK$122,000). This is
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its secured bank loans.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk and credit
risk through its unlisted debt investments and unlisted
investment funds classified as available-for-sale
investments and designated at FVTPL. The management
considers these risks are insignificant and therefore no
sensitivity analysis on such risks has been prepared.
However, the management will closely monitor such
exposures and consider hedging such exposures should
the need arise.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations at 31 March 2014 in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade receivables and the Group has
been largely dependent on a small number of customers
for a substantial portion of its business. The top three
customers represent over 90.0% (2013: 93.9%) of the
trade receivables and bills receivable at 31 March 2014,
which contributed the Group’s concentration of credit
risk by geographical location in Asia and Europe. The
failure of these customers to make required payment
could have a substantial negative impact on the Group’s
profits and liquidity. In order to minimise the credit risk,
management of the Group has credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on bank balances, liquid funds and
unlisted debt securities are limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks in Hong Kong or
financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables set out above, and liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks or financial institutions with
high credit ratings, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a source
of liquidity. As at 31 March 2014, the Group had
available unutilised credit facilities of approximately
HK$86,000,000 (2013: HK$129,000,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

6b.
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6. Financial Instruments (continue) 6. €M TR »
Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. WHKBEMEEBEZEREE (£)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEBELERE (E)
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRFAVWAEEIFTESHEE
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial ZHBTAXNEEA - R TIIBIE
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the AEBRUWEREZECHEE
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on ZEFEHZATHERERE
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to R AFRIE - TamiRTTEERITE
pay. Specifically, bank loan with a repayment on demand HRBER Z nl gE 1 - BB Al BE B iR
clause is included in the time band for earliest repayment EREEBBRRZRITEESAFA
regardless of the probability of the bank choosing to =EREHE - RXRBENBER
exercise its right. The table includes both interest and ReREREBE-MERERZE
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are M= gk s - RITRESEK
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from B R R4 HR 4 SR 2 Bl R AR VERT
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period. Ho
Liquidity tables REE &K
Carrying
Weighted 3 months Total amount at
average Less than to 2105 Over undiscounted 31 March
interest rate 3 months 1 year years 5years  cash flows 2014
“E-QE
i =f8A mE AFRERE ZA=1-H
HHE HR=fEA E-f ¥k REHNE RELE ZEHEE
% HKS 000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx FE7 FET FET FE7T FET
2014 —E-QIE
Financial liabilities at BHEE
amortised cost BHERA
Trade payables and G
bils payable EfEE - 20703 4747 . - 0178 301,786
Other payables Hit R R - 156 - - - 156 156
Secured bank loans BERRTER
- variable rate %8 1.55 28,068 20,450 30,798 37,599 116,915 111,878
325,263 25,197 30,798 37,599 418,857 413,820
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #Z= & B FEIRE E /i

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE-_Z-—NMF=A=+—HILFE
6. Financial Instruments (continueq) 6. € MI R
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. MIBEKBREEBEEREEK (£)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEBELERE (E)
Liquidity tables (Continued) TEEL & (&
Carrying
Weighted 3 months Total amount at
average Less than to 2105 Over  undiscounted 31 March
interest rate 3 months 1 year years 5 years cash flows 2013
=T =
il =f@A GES KHBERE =A=+-A

FHNE  PR=MEA E-f Eiks nENE MERE R
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8 000 HK8 000
TET TET TET TET TET TET

2013 —T-=f
Financial liabilities at 53V
amortised cost BHRA
Trade payables and ERESERR
bills payable ES - 329,337 5,488 - - 334,825 334,825
Other payables HiEMERR - 289 - - - 289 289
Secured bank loans BHRBRTER
- variable rate -%8 1.60 8,980 48,021 52,580 43,102 152,683 145,657
338,606 53,509 52,580 43,102 487,797 480,771
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

As at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, bank loan
with a repayment on demand clause is included in the
‘less than 3 months” and “3 months to 1 year” time
bands, respectively, in the above maturity analysis
according to the effective date of the repayment on
demand clause at the end of the reporting period. As
at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, the aggregate
carrying amount of such bank loan amounted to
HK$20,349,000 and HK$22,200,000, respectively.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors do not believe that it is probable that the bank
will exercise its discretionary right to demand immediate
repayment upon effective date of the repayment on
demand clause. The directors believe that such bank
loan will be repaid in 33 monthly instalments after the
end of the reporting period in accordance with the
scheduled repayment date set out in the loan agreement.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ from those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

6. Financial Instruments (continveq) 6.

6¢C.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and
financial liabilities.

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis
Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of
these financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined (in particular, the valuation technique
used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements is

observable.
Financial assets Fair value as at 31 March 2014
SRMEE R-E-—NFZAFE
Available-for-sale Investment in unlisted investment
investments funds and unlisted debt
securities HK$11,559,000
Al ERE RERFELMEEES K
JE E BB $11,559,0007%8 7T
Financial assets Investment in unlisted investment
designated at FVTPL funds and unlisted debt
securities HK$5,480,000
BERRNFEFEZ RERFELMEEES K
WBEE 3E £ BT &% 5,480,000 7T

Note: The Group has determined that the reported net
asset value represents the fair value of the unlisted

investment funds and unlisted debt securities.
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6c. SRTEATENE
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RAERSMERNATHEZE
Ko

() FEEHEHEEREHE
ER-FEREEEMEER
R FEE
REBEHR  AEE LD
REEREBRBENEA
BEFF & - TREHNAETE Z
FeRMEERTRAEBERY
ENER (FRlEMAAEER
) ARBAFEFAERA
BENABREE /A FE
AEDRRATFESFRFINE

&
b

B3R -
Fair value
hierarchy Valuation technique

DFEFHK EEEN

Level 3 Net asset value (Note)
E=® BEFRE(HZE)
Level 3 Net asset value (Note)
E=® BEFRE(HFE)

Hrit: REBEEHEESHRSEH
BEFERFLTERE
HEE R LEMEBES
ZRFEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6¢c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at

fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value
disclosures required)

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in
the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements of financial assets

At 1 April 2012 n=
Total gains (losses): wmE
— in profit or loss =

g
— in other comprehensive income — — £ 4ih %2 [ Uk 25

Purchases BE
Settlements #

Total gains: R F|

— in profit or loss —18&

— in other comprehensive income — — H i & m Yz
Purchases EE
Settlements wE

At 31 March 2014
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EEZRRNEREMBI/ERA
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(i) BBEEEF=RKLFHETE

2 2R
Financial
Available- assets
for-sale designated
investments at FVTPL
EBER
BAFEH
AHEERE ZHBEE
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FHET FET
8,561 8,078
400 639
(56) =
6,658 =
- (8,375)
15,563 5,342
530 138
(178) =
4,760 =
(9,116) =
H 11,559 5,480




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

(i)  Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements of financial assets (Continued)
Of the total gains for the year included in “other
gains and losses” in profit or loss, gains of
HK$225,000 relates to unlisted investment funds
held at the end of the reporting period (2013: gains
of HK$559,000). Included in other comprehensive
income is an amount of HK$352,000 gain related
to unlisted investment funds and unlisted debt
securities held at the end of the reporting period
and is reported as changes of “investment
revaluation reserve” (2013: gains of HK344,000).

Segment Information

Information reported to the Company’s executive directors (the
chief operating decision maker) for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on geographical regions.

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
distribution of household electrical appliance. The Group is
currently organised into four operating divisions — Europe
sales, Asia sales, America sales and other sales. The
information reported to the Group’s chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of performance is based on these operating divisions.
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Segment Information (continueq)

Segment Revenues and Results

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenues and

results for each of the reportable and operating segments.

Year ended 31 March 2014

Segment revenue

Segment profit

Other gains and losses (except gain
on disposal of property, plant and
equipment on moulds and net
exchange loss)

Depreciation (except moulds)

Increase in fair value of
investment properties

Finance costs

Unallocated income and
expenses, net (Note b)

Profit before tax

paiS'e

DHEFE

£

His B R ER
(HENE BER

Rz B (RARM) R

FEXBRRI)
& (RAKIN)
REDELTEEM
HBER
ADROBARFFR
(Hito)

L A A
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7. THER #)

DEERBEREE
ATHREBARBIZAI 2RI EED
MLEEBZEXBREAFLZD
#r -

7

BEr—F-—NFE=F=1+—HIFE

Europe Asia America Others  Consolidated
BOM oM M Hith ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note a)
(Kfita)
1,021,305 518,726 383,816 91,558 2,015,405
81,292 41,289 30,550 7,288 160,419
1,164
(74,070)
31,166
(2,048)
(11,312)
105,319
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Segment Information (continueq) 7. DEHEE &
Segment Revenues and Results (Continued) PTHEEBEREE (Z)
Year ended 31 March 2013 B _—_E—=F=HA=+—HIFE
Europe Asia America Others  Consolidated
B o M Hty RE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Note a)
(Hita)
Segment revenue ABEERE 1,152,856 575,078 546,208 82,220 2,356,362
Segment profi SERF 93,102 46,442 44,110 6,640 190,294
Other gains and losses (except gain Hitn BRI RER
on disposal of property, plant and (HENE BEK
equipment on moulds and net FEZEF (BARM) R
exchange loss) FELE BRI 1,251
Depreciation (except moulds) e (AR (70,269)
Increase in fair value of REMELTFEEM
investment properties 31,111
Finance costs B%ER (2,934)
Unallocated income and AARMMARRZFE
expenses, net (Note b) (HiiEb) (16,323)
Profit before tax BR 5 A 133,130
Note a: Segment revenue in others represent revenue Biita : FIAEMME 2 55 & %EE
from destinations of shipment of products which XQREE.%@ BEBTNTE
individually contributed less than 10% of total 10% B 3E B #) il o
revenue of the Group.
Note b:  Unallocated income and expenses represented Kb : RO ARBEZRE EMm
other income, central administration costs and WA -FRITHBRARES
Directors’ salaries. H&e
The accounting policies of the reportable and operating TE2ERREEN et RFENE
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies B a3l v @ st B HE - » E

described in note 3. Segment profit represents the profit
earned by each segment without allocation of other income,
central administration cost and Directors’ salaries, other gains
and losses (except gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment on moulds and net exchange loss), depreciation
(except moulds), increase in fair value of investment properties
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Group’s
chief operating maker for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment. Revenue reported above
represents revenue generated from external customers. There
were no inter-segment sales in both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #ZR& B M EEMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE_ET—NE=A=1+—HItFEE
7. Segment Information (continueq) 7. DEER #
Segment Assets and Liabilities THEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’ assets and liabilities AR AERZEAEREEES D
by reportable and operating segment: MEERBEER:
Segment Assets TEEE
2014 2013
—E-lmEF —E—=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Europe EOM 255,903 310,586
Asia D) 130,424 154,430
America EM 97,627 139,197
Others H b [@ 23,421 23,720
Segment assets DEEE 507,375 627,933
Unallocated assets ROBLEE
Available-for-sale investments AHEEERE 11,559 15,563
Financial assets designated as FVTPL BEREREATEFEZ
MBEE 5,480 5,342
Time deposits and deposits placed EHERRFRIEITR

with banks and financial institutions TR TF 280,761 139,377
Bank balances and cash ROTEFEERS 256,982 159,261
Investment properties "EME 218,000 242100
Plant, equipment and machinery 5 &R as (FEARRIN)

(except moulds) 331,176 391,181
Club debentures SHRES 13,866 13,866
Other receivables H i & W BR X 60,878 128,335
Tax recoverable FE R FHIE 6,708 962
Other unallocated assets (Note) HEtARDBEEE (A1) 34,002 31,419

Consolidated assets e BE 1,726,787 1,755,339

Note: Other unallocated assets comprised prepaid lease Bt HEMARSEEEBFEAMNEER
payments and deposits paid for acquisition of property, BRENBEME HWERREZ
plant and equipment. e
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e MBRE SN

BE—_T-NE=A=1+—HIFE

7. Segment Information (continueq) 7. oEER #
Segment Assets and Liabilities (Continued) THEEREE (£Z)
Segment Liabilities THERE
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FrET FET
Europe B 20,379 17,098
Asia EEN 9,576 7,615
America =M 7,333 8,124
Others H b [@ 1,719 1,215
Segment liabilities (Note) DEEE (KE) 39,007 34,052
Unallocated liabilities ROMREE
Trade payables and bills payable BB SERREMNEE 301,786 334,825
Other payables and accruals H A e A5 BR R S B A R A 168,747 175,090
Secured bank loans BEMRITERK 111,878 145,657
Tax payable FESTFR IR 45,780 41,468
Deferred tax liabilities EER IR 12,423 17,719
Consolidated liabilities e Bl 679,621 748,811
Note: Segment liabilities represented mould deposits received Bt it - EEBEENK

by each segment.
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A 2 s WS .
7. Segment Information (continueq) 7. PHER @)
Other Segment Information HeaBER
Year ended 31 March 2014 BE—FE-—NF=A=+—HULFE
Total
Europe Asia America Others segment  Unallocated ~Consolidated
BN [ EM At E AR KB e
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or HEEERSRETEMN D 2% M HE
segment assets: B EEE-
Additions to non-current assets ~ JERENEE N 2,650 1,229 843 187 4,909 16,142 21,051
Depreciation & 2,397 1,115 788 178 4,478 74,070 78,548
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision ItEFRE BR MR T EEEREA
maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or BTrBEERFFEZD I *ﬂjzﬁiﬂ %
loss or segment assets: DEEE -
Interest income on bank deposits #1777 2 2 Fl B M A - - - - - 2,063 2,063
Interest income on available-for-sale ] £ & % & 2 #| 8 S\
investments - - - - - 306 306
Rental income BEHA - - - - - 5,341 5,341
Year ended 31 March 2013 BE_E—=—F=-H=+—HIFFE
Total
Europe Asia America Others segment  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
B o EM EipipE PEAE AAE Fa
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or IEBEE R ERETE8 D 5 iE N HE
segment assets: B HMEE-
Additions to non-current assets ~ FERENEEREM 1,309 630 733 71 2,743 57,827 60,570
Depreciation ik 2,202 1,013 1,120 142 4,477 70,269 74,746
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision I ERRE T BRI AL E B IBEARAR AL
maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or BrNEERFTEZ D5 = E 8k
loss or segment assets: DEEE °
Interest income on bank deposits #1777 22 Fl B M A - - = - - 1,505 1,505
Interest income on available-for-sale ] & 1% & 2 | S A
investments - - - - - 342 342
Rental income ik UN - - - - - 3,921 3,921
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE_Z-—NF=A=+—HIFE
7. Segment Information (continueq) 7. oEER #
Information about major customers FEEFMNER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years AEEEBAHEEI0%HINALHE
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as FHREHMNEFEROT
follows:
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FETT FE T

Customer A (Europe, Asia, America and Others) & PA (BUM -~ 22~ =M &

H fth 3 [ ) 869,667 1,046,162

Customer B (Europe, Asia, America and Others) & FEB (BUM - 250 ~ =M &
Hib e ) 525,876 590,502

Customer C (Europe, Asia, America and Others) & FC (BN~ 25~ =M &
Hith & ) 206,138 318,500

8. Other Income 8. Htlt A
2014 200)11€}
—ZT-HmF i
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
Rental income He A 5,341 3,921
Interest on bank deposits RITH B 2,063 1,505
Building management fee income BFEREBRA 851 734
Scrap sales 555 BE i 461 1,271
Interest on available-for-sale investments —J HEERE ZFE 306 342
Investment income from ERBEmEATEFEZ

financial assets at FVTPL REIRA - 88
Others HAt 1,185 540
10,207 8,346
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9. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and
Employees’ Emoluments

(@)

9. EEX THHARKESEM=

Directors’ emoluments (@ EE=M£
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight EfSEN TR (ZE—=F:
(2013: eight) Directors and the Chief Executive were as BR)EZRITHAHZSE 2ME
follows: (TN
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE_F—WE=/F=+—Hi
FE
Ms. Cheung ~ Ms. Cheung Mr. Lai Professor
Mr. Cheung  Mr. Cheung Lai Chun, Lai See,  Mr. Cheung Ah Ming, Lo Chung Dr. Chan Total
Lun Shu Wan Maggie Sophie Pui Leon Mau  How Chun 2014
ERit EHEEE REYZt  REHLt FEEE  REPEE EERAR  REEEL an
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TEn TEn TER TEn TEn TEn TER TEn
Fees we - - - - - 100 - - 100
Other emoluments ~ Eft {4
Salaries and )
other benefits Eftra 2,963 2,669 1,436 1,577 1,305 - - - 9,950
Bonus (nois) AL (W) 432 2513 249 27 178 - - - 3619
Contributions to RINEFIG B
retirement
benefits schemes - 263 143 162 130 - - - 698
Total emoluments M@ 3,395 5,445 1,828 1,986 1,613 100 - - 14,367
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-—FE—=F=ZH=1+—HI
FE
Ms. Cheung  Ms. Cheung Mr. Lai Professor
Mr. Cheung  Mr. Cheung Lai Chun, LaiSee, M. Cheung Ah Ming, Lo Chung Dr. Chan Total
Lun Shu Wan Maggie Sophie Pui Leon Mau How Chun 2013
KLt FEBERE REYRT RENRE REEE  BEBAE  EERHR  REEEL it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL AL TAR AL TAT TAL TAT TARL TAT
Fees e = - - - - 100 - - 100
Other emoluments  Effi&
Salaries and FeR
other benefits At AEH 2,946 2,662 1,428 1,667 1,298 - - - 10,001
Bonus (note) T (H#) 730 4372 509 577 32 = - = 6,510
Contributions to RIVEREEIER
retirement
benefits schemes - 263 143 162 130 - - - 698
Total emoluments  Fi& 48 3,676 7,297 2,080 2,406 1,750 100 - - 17,309
Note: The performance related incentive payment is determined Hrat: BRRBHBES THRIEER]

with reference to the performance of the individual and
the Group.

98 Allan International Holdings Limited Z= & BB &£ B A R 2 &

AT REBRBERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

9. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and
Employees’ Emoluments (continued)

10.

(@)

(b)

Other Gains and Losses 10. HW BRI R EE
2014 2013
—E-NE —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Net foreign exchange loss INE 1R F 58 (6,259) (7,106)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - WEMEE AT
plant and equipment 1,080 537
Write-off of property, plant and equipment W - R K R 1 bR (584) (95)
Net gain on disposal of HENHEERERTFE
available-for-sale investments 530 400
Net gain on financial assets designated BEREATFEFEZHB
at FVTPL é%&ﬂ@% 138 639
(5,095) (5,625)
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Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan is also the Chief Executive of
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive.

Professor Lo Chung Mau waived his fees of HK$100,000
(2013: HK$100,000) for the year ended 31 March 2014.
Dr. Chan How Chun waived her fees of HK$100,000
(2013: HK$100,000) for the year ended 31 March 2014.
No other Director and the Chief Executive waived any
emoluments for both years.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals in the Group in 2014 and
2013 were all Directors and details of their emoluments
are included in (a) above.

e TBRE

(BT

=S

ME=A=1+—HItFE

9. EEX THHARKEEM=

(%&)

(a)

(b)

EEME (&)
REREETASARR ZITHAR
BoHEHEAREZME B
ERRHITRERREZER -

EEXHEREE_ZT—NF
“A=+t—HLtEmEEES
100,000 L (ZF — =%
100,000/ 7T) ° R Z HF 18 TR &

—ME=A=+—HBIK
FHWS100,0008 T (ZT—=
F :100,000% 70) <8 B EMtE
= RATER AR N E B W A A

A
Sz @

EEMS
AEERZZTE—AFRZT—=
FRAAMNGERFEHERNALTS
BARRIZEE HMeERE
R X (a)TB I 55 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

11. Disposal of a Subsidiary 1. HE—RKME Q=

During the current year, the Group entered into a sale
agreement with an independent third party (the “Purchaser”)
to dispose of the entire equity interest in a then wholly-
owned subsidiary, Southern Well Holdings Limited (“Southern
Well”), at a cash consideration of RMB43,880,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$55,147,000). In addition, pursuant
to the agreement, upon completion of the disposal, the
Group transferred and assigned to the Purchaser an
outstanding balance due from Southern Well amounting to
HK$15,873,000.

Southern Well is a company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its principal asset is two parcels of land located in the
PRC which was classified as investment property at fair
value. The disposal was completed on 30 August 2013,
on which date the Group lost control of Southern Well. The
investment property was disposed at the selling proceeds
of HK$55,266,000. The resulting increase in fair value of
HK$23,766,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during
the year ended 31 March 2014 and the property revaluation
reserve of HK$12,292,000, arising from change of usage as
evidenced by end of owner occupation on 1 December 2011,
was transferred to retained profits accordingly. The Directors
believe that the increase in fair value of HK$23,766,000 was
mainly due to a premium paid by the buyer who is holding
another plot of land adjacent to the land held by Southern
Well which might allow the buyer greater flexibility on his
development plan.
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e MBRE SN

BE—_T-NE=A=1+—HIFE

11. Disposal of a Subsidiary (continued) 1. HE—RBHREBLR @

HK$'000
FET
Gain/loss on disposal of a subsidiary: REE—EHBATD BT, &HE:
Consideration received IWERR (B 55,147
Assignment of shareholder’s loan IR SR (15,873)
Net assets disposed of HENEEFE (39,274)
Gain/loss on disposal HERFEE -
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEZHEESRAFE:
Cash consideration RERE 55,147
No summary of cash flows is presented TEEMEFERBLBEMREM:
as Southern Well did not have any cash flows U2 B HIR SR 2 BK -
for both periods.
Total effect on equity: HERBENTE:
Release of property revaluation reserve YIEE G FEHEE L (12,292)
Retained profits recognised RE ) ERER 12,292
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE_T—WF=A=1+—HILLFE
/
12.Income Tax Expense 12. i8I
2014 2013
—E-lmEF ===
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax: REFFHIE
Hong Kong BB 13,958 18,343
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI ERTER 3,684 4,792
17,642 28,188
Under(over)provision in prior years: BEFERETIE (BERE)
Hong Kong a5 4,149 (379)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI ERTEH 21 14
4170 (365)
Deferred tax (note 27): BIEFRLIE (Hit27)
Current year KEE 50 1,534
21,862 24,304
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated MIEFE 2 BBRES T AL 5 ER
assessable profit for both years. Fm AIR16.5% 2 Fi R+ E o
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise RIBFPBRCERAESRHE ([FFE]) R
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of ERIEEAMA - B AR AELE
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%. T8 % A25% o
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 E-T-NF=A=+—HILFE
12.Income Tax Expense (continueq) 12. B RB X (@)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit REF 2B HREEER R
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and H2EWaERA BRI T

other comprehensive income as follows:

2014 2013

—E-MF —ET—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Profit before tax B 75 548 ) 105,319 133,130
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits BEBENEH IR E16.5%

Tax rate of 16.5% 17,378 21,966
Tax effect of expenses that are not A HR 2 7 S T R AR

deductible for tax purpose i lb A 2,379 996
Tax effect of income that is not IR BT 2 W ] e S A

taxable for tax purpose a2 (6,323) (6,165)

Effect of different tax rates in the PRC ARENTBEIRARE 2 ZE8 2,319 2,635

Under(over)provision in respect of prior years @EFEEE T T (BERE) 4,170 (365)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERHRIEFEZZE 2,496 4,081

Withholding tax on undistributed earnings RO ELAH <z B 512 982

Others HoAth (1,069) 174

Tax charge for the year AEEHETH 21,862 24,304
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE_ET—NE=A=1+—HItFEE
13. Profit for the Year 13. ZEERF
2014 2013
—E-mEF —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit for the year has been arrived REE R A kR T8 :

at after charging:

Staff salaries and allowances 8 T # B & = 8h 311,683 325,880
Contributions to retirement benefits RRAEFIFH 45K kR

schemes net of forfeited amount of B8 Uz #3: 33,1318 7T

HK$33,131 (2013: nil) —E—=F:E) 16,658 13,419
Total staff costs, including BRETHA (BIEESHE)

Directors’ emoluments 328,341 339,299
Depreciation for property, Y- BWEREETE

plant and equipment 78,548 74,746
Release of prepaid lease payments R TENEEFKIE 721 706
Auditor’s remuneration % EETEN & 2,405 2,390
Interest on bank borrowings wholly BARAFHNEZHEERN

repayable within five years HRATE R A 1,400 2,190
Interest on bank borrowings not wholly BERAFTFAEZHEEN

repayable within five years RATIEFKF B 648 744
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

mEMBRE SN

BE—_T-NE=A=1+—HIFE

14.Dividends 14. R E
2014 2013
—E-NF —F—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Dividends recognised as distribution FHANERRIRE KL
during the year
2014 Interim dividend of HK2.5 cents —ZE-MFFRHKRE
(2013: 2013 interim dividend of BT mAk2.551(0
HK2.5 cents) per ordinary share mER==m g SR — s
FHA AR B.2.5711l) 8,386 8,386
2013 final dividend of HK10.3 cents —E-ZFARERE
(2013: 2012 final dividend of FE®BR10.378 1
HK12.5 cents) per ordinary share e e
RHEARR 212.5%l) 34,550 41,929
42,936 50,315
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend RBEHRERE ESERREHEZ
of HK8 cents in respect of the year ended 31 March 2014 T -ME=A=1T—HFERHARE

(2013: final dividend of HK10.3 cents in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2013) per share has been proposed by the

REABFALRE

X IR

FRSEW (ZFE—=F :10.3781l) °
gt &: e 3t}

Directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The final dividend will be
paid on 25 September 2014 to shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Members of the Company on 2
September 2014.

RERANFRITCRFEFRE L4
WA ZE—WFENLAZTHBIRR
FR-_ZE—MFALA-—HBIARF
IR Mz R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. Earnings Per Share

e N BREEM T
BE—T—F=A=1+—HILFE
/—
15. BRZ R
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to
the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings
per share (Profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company)

BRADEARREGEANELREN
ZEBETRBEATER

2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
MEREAREFME 2 AT
(RFEET DAL A
mEAZEHM) 83,457 108,826
Number of shares
BOHE
2014 2013
—ZE—-mF =F—=
‘000 ‘000
5F F
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of FLEREARZEF|M S 2 L@
basic earnings per share f% 7 &k B 335,443 335,433
No diluted earnings per share has been presented for both EMFERBETE
years as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue. B IR B G IREERF -

g 2 Tak
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16. Investment Properties

mEMBRE SN

BE—_T-NE=A=1+—HIFE

16. IREWE

FAIR VALUE NS
At 1 April 2012

Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss

At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss

Disposal s

At 31 March 2014

During the current year, an investment property located
outside Hong Kong under long lease was disposed of upon
the disposal of a subsidiary as described in note 11. The
investment property was disposed at the selling proceeds
of HK$55,266,000. The resulting increase in fair value of
HK$23,766,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the
year ended 31 March 2014.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property at 31 March
2014, representing property in Hong Kong under long lease,
has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
on the respective dates by RHL Appraisal Ltd., independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group.
The valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence
of transaction prices for similar properties in the same
locations and conditions. There has been no change from
the valuation technique used in the prior year. The Group’s
property interest held under operating leases to earn rentals
is measured using the fair value model and is classified and
accounted for as investment property. An increased in fair
value of HK$7,400,000 during the year ended 31 March 2014
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

R-_ZF——®mA—H
NFEE IR BN ER

IN=EF—==43 = B = 40— (B R B J5 =B
DA NN RS AR

R-ZZE—mNE=RA=+—H

HK$'000
FET

210,989
31,111

242,100
31,166
(565,2606)

218,000

RAFE  — BB B AN I A
REAEFXNBENREYE REE
MEARR —HEL (FHERRME
11) ° 5% R B ) % bA55,266,00058 7T
& o UL E 4 228,766,000/8 7T A FE
EMERBEE-T—NF=A=1—
HEFEZHABEREMEE KRS
RIER

N_TE—NEFE=ZA=+—H AEFEE
BYMEZAFEDIREEEMENUR
HEESFAFEZYME BB ER
SEREBMENEZE XS ERMERKX
FMITAHEERBRARETEMR - (AE
TiRIBE ™% 2 MITER AR H & &
fREET - FTANERRNE EF2E
M o REERB A E AR B BRI
MezWEERDRAAFERA
2 WHBERARINEREYME -FTE
A 27,400,000/ 7 2 A FEIEINE R
REBaREMEERERER
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16. Investment Properties (continuea)

In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest and
best use of the property is their current use. One of the key
unobservable inputs used in valuing the investment property
was the price per square foot, which was HK$18,305 per
square foot. An increase in the price per square foot used
would result in an increase in the fair value measurement of the
investment property, and vice versa.

Details of the Group’s investment property and information
about their fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2014 are as

mEMBRE SN

s —ps— e = JBl=ne— 8| |[E4EE

16. REWE #)

FERHEMEN R TER e k&ER
ERFEERNYE - EFEREDE
- HEh—ExEREN A BREEA
BEREBYHIRZER REYH
IR18,305/8 7T - B A F T RREZ
BNEEHIREMER A FEAER
e RZINEA

R-ZZE-—NFE=A=+—H0 F~&EZ
REMERERRAFESRZERF

follows: HaA :
Level 3 Fair value
E=& AEE
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
Commercial property units located URBBZEEMHEEN
in Hong Kong 218,000 218,000

There were no transfers into or out of level 3 during the year.

The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above
are situated on:

Property in Hong Kong under long lease BBV I AR H
HAOFXFE

REAE=RIWREEBEAREL -

LHREEZRERIIAR

Land outside Hong Kong under long lease BB AN o DA K HA

MOTARHE

The Group has pledged the investment property located in
Hong Kong with a carrying value of HK$218,000,000 (2013:
HK$210,600,000) to secure the mortgage loan granted to the
Group.
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2014 2013
—EF-mF e
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET TAET
218,000 210,600

- 31,500

218,000 242,100

RAEBRESKRBER BERBURE
75 BR E{8218,000,0008 7t (=T — =
4 : 210,600,000/ 7T ) H X B ¥ 1
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE_Z-—NF=A=1+—HBILFE
17.Property, Plant and Equipment 17. 9% - BERKE
Furniture, Moulds Construction
Leasehold Factory  Plantand fixtures and and Motor in
land Buildings buildings  machinery  equipment tools vehicles progress Total
MERE BERE KA XE

BEfL BF IBN¥ R k% HBAERIR RE  ERIE EH

HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

FET FET TET FET T FET T FET FET
(Note a) (Note a)
(Frita) (Hrita)

COsT RAE

At 1 April 2012 RZE-—FMA—H 9,615 4,374 188,561 373,108 137,842 26,351 11,988 1,244 753,083
Exchange adjustments MERE - - 3,018 4,612 1,863 16 70 47) 9,532
Additions AE N - 772 18,615 35,631 2,865 2,179 508 60,570
Transfer Ehi - - - - 1,705 - - (1,705) =
Disposals/wite-off HE /i - - - (4,288) (8,525) 72) (2,805) - (15,690)
At 31 March 2013 and R-Z-=%=§

1 April 2013 =t+-BERMA-H 9,615 4,374 192,351 392,047 168,516 29,160 11,432 - 807,495
Exchange adjustments MEFE - - (789) (1,863) (375) @ 65) - (3,090)
Additions AE = - - 7,528 7,596 5,004 923 - 21,051
Disposals/write-off HE /i = = = (7,088) (1,594) © (162) - (8,847)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-—mE

=R=t+-H 9,615 4,374 191,566 390,624 174,143 34,159 12,128 - 816,609
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2012 R=E——%mA—H 243 4,374 43,937 194,902 78,280 17,975 6,953 - 346,664
Exchange adjustments MNEFE - - 347 2,154 573 8 65) - 3,137
Provided for the year TEERE 10 = 7,579 38,729 21,985 4,613 1,830 = 74,746
Eliminated on disposals/ HE /bR

write-off - - - (3,920) (8,520) (72) (1,817) - (14,329)
At 31 March 2013 and RZE—=%=A

1 April 2013 =+-HREmA-AH 253 4,374 51,863 231,865 92,318 22,524 7,021 - 410,218
Exchange adjustments MNERE - - (82) (1,513) (307) ? (58) - (1,962)
Provided for the year TEERE 11 = 7,715 39,351 25,101 4,636 1,734 = 78,548
Eliminated on disposals/ HE /MK

write-off - - - (6,176) (1,559) €] (162) - (7,900)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-mE

SHEr= 264 4,374 59,496 268,527 115,558 27,155 8,535 = 478,904
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2014 RZB-IF

SEE—= 9,351 - 132,070 127,097 58,590 7,004 3,598 - 337,706
At 31 March 2013 RZZ—=F

=A=t+-H 9,362 - 140,488 160,182 76,198 6,636 4,411 - 397,217
Note: et -

SN Bih > g = =+ A S

(@)  The buildings situated in the leasehold land had been fully (@) REBABREMSINIHOREE

EEE - BNRAKEER -BE
HEPFA N TN EE  KEIHE
o

depreciated but still in use by the Group. The leasehold land is

situated in Hong Kong under long lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #ZR& B M EEMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014  E_E-—NE=A=1+—HILEE
17.Property, Plant and Equipment 17. ¥ -BERRE 2
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for T RIEYME BERSE (EREIE
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line BRON) 2 ITE THIRLA TSI F R E AT
basis at the following rates per annum: g
Leasehold land FrisA r) i Over the lease terms
AEHA
Buildings and factory buildings BER IR E 4%
Plant and machinery R 5= 5% e T i 25 15%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment RE -RKERFZE 20 - 33'/5%
Moulds and tools RAKRTH 20 - 33'/s%
Motor vehicles A 20%
The carrying value of buildings and factory buildings BFRIBME REESE:
comprises:
2014 2013
—E-MF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Buildings situated in Hong Kong URBEEZRAHEEF

under long lease - =

Factory buildings situated outside UREBAINZ R EHEE
Hong Kong under medium-term lease T g% 132,070 140,488

132,070 140,488
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #ZRE B M EEMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014

18. Prepaid Lease Payments

19.

2 E-—NFE=A=1+—BItFEE

18. FNHEMEA

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land AEBZEMNEERESEMLRES

outside Hong Kong, under medium-term lease.

ASMNAF EREE 2 HE 13 -

2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EESRB®R 2D
Non-current assets ERBEE 27,104 27,835
Current assets MENE E 721 706
27,825 28,541
Club Debentures 19. BEfTfES
HK$'000
FBET
CARRYING VALUE IREE
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2014 H=-Z——&pM7—H "
—®E-=%=A=1—-B8F&
—E—NF=A=+—H 13,866
The club debentures with indefinite useful lives are tested for EHRNEMESRSFERENR
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that AREEFRBTRESERBE TS
they may be impaired. The Directors are of the opinion that no BIE2EMBEE RELBENRE

impairment loss was identified with reference to market value. Eige
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #ZR& B M EEMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE_Z-—NF=A=+—HLFE
20. Available-For-Sale Investments 20. I HERE

2014 2013

—E-NF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Unlisted investment funds FEEMEREES 5,901 5,102
Unlisted debt securities T ERE S 5,658 10,461
11,559 15,563

Analysed for reporting purposes as: EESRB®R 2D

Non-current assets ERBEE 9,217 12,467
Current assets MENEE 2,342 3,096
11,559 15,563
The investments in unlisted investment funds and unlisted debt FLEMEEESRIIFLTEBESIK
securities are stated at fair value, which have been determined AFEAR BAAYCREERHEE
by reference to prices provided by the counterparty financial BIERZ - R-ZE—NF=ZRA=+—
institution. As of 31 March 2014, the unlisted debt securities H-3EEMERES 2 FELAEE F
carry interest either at fixed rates ranges from 4% to 5.625% KB E HE B4%ES.625% T F 5%
per annum or variable rates based on the London Interbank BREAFE URIARTAERL

Offered Rate plus a margin of 0.75% per annum. The original (TLIBOR ) 1i{R & & & F 8.0.75% °
maturity of these unlisted debt securities ranges from five hEFEMEBESCRIBHBERA
years to eight years (2013: from three years to eight years) EENETE (= ;:——i H=F=
with maturity date from December 2014 up to April 2016. NE) EHBR_Z—NOF+_Aie
Disclosures of fair value measurement are set out in note 6c. EFT—RFWEA- $T§a+;ﬁ(\\f9ﬁ&

6o 55 o

112 Allan International Holdings Limited Zafa EIFR EBEE R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

21.

22.

Financial Assets Designated at
FVTPL

FLEMIREES

Unlisted investment funds

These represent unlisted investment funds and unlisted debt
investment redeemable or being disposable at the Directors’
discretion with the total principal amounts of HK$5,480,000
(2013: HK$5,342,000). As at 31 March 2014, the Directors
intended to hold these investments at least in the coming
twelve months from the end of the reporting period and
therefore they are classified as non-current assets.

The above financial instruments are measured at fair value at

the end of each reporting period. Disclosures of the fair value
measurement are set out in note 6¢.

Inventories

Raw materials R
Work in progress ER M
Finished goods BIRK fh

Annual Report 2013/2014 —E—=FZF_
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22.

21. ZBERBAVPEFEZ

BMBEE

2014 2013
—R—DOF ot — = 2
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
5,480 5,342

B RESATERSLENI LT
&égéﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁyﬁ$ﬁ
% %8 /55,480,000 7T (= =4

5,342,000 L) c R =& — @ F=A
=+—H EZXFEEREZEREERE
FHBE A EERRELRFE+ =@
A MZERENERIERBEE -

tieMTAREEALEBUA
& o AFEHE N M FE6CH EE o

A {8

A
5FE
2014 2013
—ZE—mF —T—=4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
33,110 32,424
14,453 16,864
52,687 36,600
100,250 85,888
E-MEEE 113



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B #& 3R &5 2= [

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE_ T NE=A=1+—HItFEE
o . f=v1] =
23. Trade Receivables and Bills 2. EWE SRR KEWRE
- . =+,
Receivable/Other Receivables /H b FE U BR 7K
2014 2013
—ZE - —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FiET FET
Trade receivables & W E 5 BR K 379,585 515,745
Bills receivable fE W E & 636 1,641
380,221 517,386
Other receivables (Note) Hpth R BR 30 (K7 3E) 60,878 128,335
Total trade and other receivables EWE R K
H fth fE Us BR TR 42 58 441,099 645,721
Note: As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s other receivables mainly Hig: R—=ZE—m&E=/A=+—8 -
include value added tax recoverable of HK$ 51,886,000 (2013: AReEFWHEMEKEZTERIE
HK$119,203,000), which will be repayable within one year. 51,886,000 T (Z & —=4:

119,208,000/ 7T ) 2 A Y Bl 44 (B 7
oA R —FRURE e

The Group maintains defined credit period of up to 90 days. REEGVPEEEERZIX - AT A
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables and bills FEWEB ZEZ R ENEENARSE B I
receivable presented based on the invoice dates at the end BHEOB AR JEEB ST XY A
of the reporting period, which approximated the respective FAE 3L =

revenue recognition dates.

2014 2013

—E—mEF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAEIT
0 — 90 days 0-90H 361,090 431,117
91 - 120 days 91 - 120H 19,128 86,210
Over 120 days H#120H8 3 59
380,221 517,386
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

23. Trade Receivables and Bills

Receivable/Other Receivables
(Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. In addition, the Group reviews the repayment
history of receivables by each customer with reference to
the payment terms stated in contracts. In determining the
recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any
change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the
date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. In the
opinion of Directors, the trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired were of good credit quality based on good
repayment history at the end of the reporting period and no
impairment is necessary for these balances.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$30,048,000 (2013:
HK$106,647,000) which are past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as
there has not been significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired
presented based on the overdue date:

Overdue 0 — 90 days #®ER0 - 90H
Overdue 91 — 120 days i@HI91 — 1208
Overdue more than 120 days i EA R 381201
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23. EWRE
/E@@wnm«

RS R E Y

B = =i

2 IR R EWRE

REBEMEEFF P NEB A E
EEFZEEERREEFPAERE
REE - ULSN REBBES KT 2
FEFRIEEFEEREFAZL
% KEERREE SRS #Ef@%
ERREAZEEEXZHRBUE L

BB R E B IRz AT W Bl - Fﬁi
B EFZR5 ENNRELRI &
WT%%MV?E%E% I # R AE K
REE B TFE SR SHERE-

AEERKEBESRRBERAES
$#30,048,0008 T (ZF — =% :
106,647,000/ 7T ) 2 FE W BR 31 % BR
FRME BB R BN EELRE
%E%ﬁ HEEEEWSEARNE -
B0 & B2 & s A= T Y E - AR E
BERZERRFEEMERR-

BB B8 3 R (2 BB AR R
BEIEE 2 BRE T

2014 2013
—ZT-HmF =
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FEx TET
30,048 105,110

- 1,635

- 2

30,048 106,647
T—EER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements me

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE—_ T NE=A=1+—HItFEE

23. Trade Receivables and Bills 23.

Receivable/Other Receivables
(Continued)

The Group performed assessment on individual trade
receivable balance and recognised allowance on specific
balance when necessary. In the opinion of the Directors, there
was no allowance for doubtful debts as at the end of both
reporting periods.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade and other
receivables and bills receivable. The Group has not provided
for impairment loss as the Directors assessed that these
balances will be recovered base on their settlement records.

24. Time Deposits and Deposits 24.

Placed with Banks and Financial
Institutions/Bank Balances and
Cash

(@) Time deposits and deposits placed with banks and
financial institutions

Time deposits placed with banks BFERIRIT 2 EHER
Deposits placed with financial institutions 7% & Bl # 18 ~ 17 3¢

Time deposits and deposits placed with banks and
financial institutions carry fixed interest rates with
effective interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 3.15%
(2018: 0.01% to 3.1%) per annum.

116 Allan International Holdings Limited TifaBIFREE AR A T

FE UK
H

a2 RN B R &
/E e

Ba
1=
W EWERRR (&)

AEEESERKE SRR EHR I
RBBRAFEAERERRE - EER
A RMERS FEARK T EFTER
BB

N6 B3 LB 5 S H A R WAR K K
EUNREREEMERR EFENK
LSRR BRI E - A E
I % SR R BB R B o

ERERAERBTRS
R > 73 BITEE
S ikt

() EMERNERBTREREE
2R

2014 2013
—E—UF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
274,100 135,841
6,661 3,536
280,761 139,377

EHFRMFRIRIT R © S
ZHERATEBAERF R X
M EF B MHA0.01%E3.15%
(ZE—=%:0.01%=3.1%) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & B SR EZ M =T

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE_ZT—NMF=H= + BIEFE
24. Time Deposits and Deposits 24. EHiFR %ﬂﬁﬁ"ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ
Placed with Banks and Financial BB ERRIT
Institutions/Bank Balances and SHETF @
Cash (Continued)
(b) Bank balances and cash (b) SMITHEEFEMES
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range RITEFERMSMNEXTE F
from approximately nil to 0.35% (2013: nil to 0.35%) per BHER035% (ZE—=F &
annum. £0.35% ) °
25. Trade Payables and Bills Payable 25. EHESRARERNRE
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables and bills R EHBERR BEZEHHZS 2
payable presented based on the invoice date at the end of the ERNEZERRENER ZKRERDT
reporting period: R
2014 2013
—E2-MF =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 - 90 days 0-90H 281,628 298,375
91 - 120 days 91 - 120H 14,718 30,385
Over 120 days H#i@m120H 5,440 6,065
301,786 334,825
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #R& B #& 3R & ZMisE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BHE_ZT-—NE=HA=1+—HItF¥E
P Al =+,
26.Secured Bank Loans 26. BEFRITER
2014 2013
—F-mF == =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Secured bank loans, BEMEBITER
with carrying amount repayable: MERZREME:
Within one year —FA
— With repayable on demand clause — B BE R 12 B2 SR AE R 16K 20,349 22,200
— Without repayable on demand clause — R BB RIR ERE B KK 26,379 31,929
More than one year, but not exceeding ZHR—F BT BBERT
two years 13,493 26,379
More than two years, but not exceeding ZAME  BTNEBRARTE
five years 15,372 23,740
More than five years HEFLAE 36,285 41,409
111,878 145,657
Less: Amount due within one year shown BIERABEEZ
under current liabilities —FRNERSE (46,728) (54,129)
Amount due after one year —FREREE 65,150 91,528

The bank loans are variable-rate borrowings which carry
interest at 1-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) plus a range of 0.8% to 2.75% (2013: 1-month
HIBOR + 0.8% to 2.75%) per annum, which ranging from
1.01% to 2.96% (2013: 1.0% to 2.95%) per annum, thus
exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
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The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

At 1 April 2012
Charge to profit or loss

At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013

Release of deferred tax liability
arising on gain on revaluation of
the investment property on
disposal previously charged to
other comprehensive income

(Credit) charge to profit or loss

At 31 March 2014

Prior to the disposal of the investment property in PRC as
described in note 11, the Group recognised deferred tax
liability on change in fair value of the investment property
in PRC taking into account the land appreciation tax and
enterprise income tax payable upon sale of the investment
property. The deferred tax liability was released in the current

year upon disposal.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

27.Deferred Tax Liabilities

—E—=4%mH—H
& DART R A B4t 2 T U
wm L IREMERE
R FTEE A 2 B IE
HERIIE B B

N ([ 5) IR

mEMBREENE

BE—_T-NE=A=1+—HIFE

27. EEFBEEE

TIRAFEER EFEE THR

TR IR (EOARE 2B

pdts

Withholding

tax on

distributable

Fair value  Accelerated profit of

changes tax  subsidiaries
of property  depreciation in PRC Total

BAKEAR

L/ES A7 EEF 2
DNFERE MEBIBFTE BB k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FETT FET FETT
5,346 6,267 4,572 16,185
486 66 982 1,534
5,832 6,333 5,554 17,719
(5,346) - = (5,346)
(486) 24 512 50
= 6,357 6,066 12,423

RENREERFPENKREYELE
Al AEERBAREMEELHAR
ER AT EEZRER  WEZEIH
EYERT XTI ER RS EA
BHR-NFR ETRABECRNHLE

588 H o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #ZR& B M EEM T

For the year ended 31 March 2014  E_E-—NE=A=1+—HILEE
27.Deferred Tax Liabilities (continue) 27. EEBIEEE @)
The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets arising from AEBVEARABREAENEEEEL
tax losses of HK$58,658,000 (2013: HK$43,926,000) due MELEMBEE RAREELE
to the unpredictability of future project streams. Included A #58,658,0008 L (ZE— =4
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately 43,926,000/ 70 ) < KRB E RIE &
HK$57,157,101 (2013: HK$41,101,000) that will expire in FE1E R TSR B 18 B 18 M 4957,157,101
2018 (2013: expiring in 2017). Other losses may be carried BT (ZZFE—=%:41,101,0007% T)
forward indefinitely. BE BR_E-NFEH(ZE—=
FHER_T—tFHH)  -HMEE
A e PR B AL S o
28. Share Capital 28. IR 7

2014 & 2013 2014 & 2013
—E-NER —E-AOFK

—E-= ===
Number of
Shares HK$'000
Ri7EE FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each f& AE{EO0. 105 T 2 E @A
Authorised: JETE A
At beginning and end of the year REY R F 4 600,000,000 60,000
Issued and fully paid BT RBERA
At beginning and end of the year RER) R F 4B 335,432,520 33,543
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

29. Share Option Scheme 29. B& IR RE T &

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) adopted on 8 August 2012 for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to Directors and eligible employees,
the Directors and employees of the Company may, at the
discretion of the Directors, be granted options (the “Options”)
to subscribe for shares in the Company (the “Shares”) at a
price determined by its Directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of the offer
of grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Shares.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
and the number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point
in time.

BEARTR_ZE——FNANBE
W BEARAERT 8 ([MEARMEETEI)) - &
ARAESESNEREBRETAR
BIZEEREEBUARBAAR ZBG -
REEHESSET  ETEERTI
—ERZEEE (RORBLHRLE
RiEEBR(AAXRSA)ZWKME (M
X FT BRI AU B2E) : ()RR
ZHNREEREEBMAEAXSZBZ
FHUTHE (AR R FT A REFTEE B
A 5 R (iR EE

AR RBIRRIASME - TERE
BhEAERTZRNBRTSER
AR BRERIHRE D #HITRAR 210%
RBETRNDBETENATTFES
RARREREBEE BEITRAZ1% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

29. Share Option Scheme (continuea)

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years from
the date of its adoption. Options granted must be taken up
not later than 28 days after the date of grant. A consideration
of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the offer of grant of an
option. An option is exercisable on the date when the offer for
the grant of options is made but shall end in any event not later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the options.

No options have been granted during the year under the
Scheme.

30. Related Party Disclosures

(@ Rental expenses paid or payable by the Group to the
related parties are as follows:

Immediate holding company BEERATR
Allan Investment Company Limited TmIEEBRAA
Fellow subsidiaries EEX NG
Income Village Limited EHEBR QA

Fair Pacific Limited BEFRA A
Director of the Company ARIEE

Mr. Cheung Pui RIS A&
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29.

30.

BRETTE 2

BEEAENERERBSEEHE
PRiEERE RRF0F -BER T 2BK
VAN T1R28RARE - A1
TUERRULERE 2B - EXHEA
AIBERG T - (ER O BIRER N E B
i EEEABER T ARER K LB
& B HIERT 105 -

MIERE AT SINFER - LEE TRE
P4 o

BEBEAIRG2HE

(@ AREEfMNHEHESAXTT
SIEREEANL:

2014 2013
—E-mE ==L
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TR
900 900

204 204

984 984

567 663




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

30. Related Party Disclosures (continued)

(@)

(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases with immediate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries and a director of the
Company which are included in note 31 and fall due as

follows:

Immediate holding company BEERAT
Within one year —F A

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEEFRFN
Fellow subsidiaries EEA =G
Within one year —F A

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEEFRFN
Director of the Company AFEE

Within one year —F A

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFRFNRN

Certain Directors have controls in Allan Investment
Company Limited, Income Village Limited and Fair Pacific
Limited. Mr. Cheung Pui is a director of the Company.

mEMBREENE

BE—T-NE=A=1+—HIFE

0. EERMEALR G 2 IRE

(%)

(@)

(%)

RNMEFEERRK AEBEE
EERAR REMBARM—
NEEFZAAMENEEHRE
(EBREMES) MBXNKE
RIEEMNEEAEDT:

2014 2013
—F-mF S
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
900 900
1,800 -
2,700 900
1,188 1,188
1,392 1,968
2,580 3,156
338 675
- 169
338 844

BOEFRIRIVEER AR
FEABRARNMEBEFSRARAE
ZHE - RBEERARRZE
$O
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

30. Related Party Disclosures (continued)

(b)  The remuneration of key management personnel, being
the Directors, during the year was as follows:

Short-term employee benefits SR =
Post employment benefits RIREF

The remuneration of Directors is recommended by
the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals, market trends and conditions
with a view to retain and motivate executives.

31.Operating Leases

0. HERAEALIRZIZHE

(#%&)

b) REAXTEEEABZBE D

BEEWR:

2014 2013

—E—UF =TS

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FHETT

13,669 16,611

698 698

14,367 17,309

EEMeNRANEINE
B TEBBEIER aFHES
SR ES . BRI E R 1T
BABBEAEEHRS -

31. £EHE

The Group as lessee AEBEHBABEA
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Minimum lease payments paid AEEREEHEME
during the year under operating leases =K D1 3%
in respect of rented premises 2,670 2,924
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #ZRE B M EEMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE_T-—NE=A=1t—HItFE
31.Operating Leases (continueq) . EEHE »)
The Group as lessee (Continued) AEBEREABA (F)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBEFEERE AEBHEAMEZ
commitments for future minimum lease payments under A E 2B E W E S R F&IE
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: EBEZAERT
2014 2013
—E-mF —F =4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —ERr 2,441 DTTT
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EZFERFR 3,235 2,196
5,676 4,973
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for rented LEMENREMERN2EE -
premises. Leases are negotiated for an average term ranging ER="FEAF(ZT—=F:=ZF%
from three to five years (2013: three to five years) and rentals AF) R HE AN EESRR AR ERE
are fixed throughout the lease period. & o
The Group as lessor AEBEREAA
Property rental income earned during the year was FAYEME S KA BS5,341,000% 7T
HK$5,341,000 (2013: HK$3,921,000). The property held has — T —=4:3,921,000F L) ' & H
committed tenants for the next two years (2013: two years). MY *EBFME EABRKMELD
ZE—=F WEF) -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted R EFEE R ANEBEBEL M5
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: THARRFEREETLEH:
2014 2013
— ik —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within one year —F A 4,730 3,875
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FEERAFNRN 2,027 3,184
6,757 7,059
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE_Z-NF=A=1+—HBILFE
32. Capital Commitments 32. EAREE
2014 2013
—E-mF —_FT—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not BRL 2 EARNERE
provided in the consolidated financial B RRERETBREER
statements in respect of: P RE :
— acquisition of property, plant and —BEWE WEREE
equipment 6,401 3,761
Capital expenditure authorised but not BEHEBRELNZ
contracted for in respect of acquisition of BERAESRIBEEYE
property, plant and equipment = &% 74,971 44,070
81,372 47,831
33.Pledge of Assets 33. EEIKA

The Group has pledged certain leasehold land under finance
lease and investment property having carrying amounts of
HK$9,230,000 (2013: HK$9,240,000) and HK$218,000,000
(2013: HK$210,600,000) respectively as at 31 March 2014 to
secure general banking facilities and mortgage loan granted to

the Group.

AEBER _E—NF=ZA=+—
HE & MR EED 59,230,000
T (ZZT—=%:9,240,000/8 1)
% 218,000,000 L (=T —=F:
210,600,000 7T) 2 & TR EH & #

BN REFTRIREYE  MERA

SEERZ —RRTEERZBER
Z Ao
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

34. Retirement Benefits Schemes

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong participates in both a
defined contribution scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF
Scheme”) in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of independent trustees.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by contributions from employees
of 5% of their salaries. The employers will contribute based on
the monthly salaries of employees according to the following
schedule:

mEMBREENE

BE—T-NE=A=1+—HIFE

34.

3R K18 A 5T &

B HE QRS EMIATE R E
MR BERRAREEBRBIED ([RTE
SHENRER=ZZZTF+AK
MR BRI RS GO Z B ERTE
it 8 ([RESFE]) %A EEE
HEASBEERDRATR BHEEHR
BEREAMERIZBIESRE -

2mrEetElZEE  BARKAA
B Z5% o B E M ARE AT EHIRETE
SABREHRZHRE:

Rate of
Number of completed years of service contribution
5T X AR %5 & HA EEES
Not more than 5 years DPREAEF 5%
More than 5 years but not more than 10 years ZRAFETLZNI105F 7.5%
More than 10 years ZRTF 10%

The employees are entitled to the full benefit of the
subsidiaries’ contributions and accrued returns after
participating in the ORSO Scheme for 10 years or more, or
at an increased scale of 30% to 90% after participating in
the ORSO Scheme from 3 to 9 years respectively. Where
an employee leaves the employment prior to becoming
fully entitled to the employer’s contributions, the excess
contributions are forfeited and the employer may utilise the
forfeited contributions to reduce its future contributions. At 31
March 2013 and 2014, the Group had no material unutilised
forfeited contributions in the ORSO Scheme which may be
used to reduce the Group’s future contributions.

2MAEeFER +F2BE AT RE
FEMBARREBEHRZHRERE
HAME  ELNFRRIEF EE
K Z B 30%E90%(E = 2 #5158 - 8
BERAREERE BT HRATRR
A% B T/ U > TEErERAR
RUCZ BERIIR B R B 2 5K - B E
—E—=ZkZE—ME=A=+—H
b RNEEDR B E AR HEK AT DR
HREMAESER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

34. RIARBRIFE (2

34. Retirement Benefits Schemes

(Continued)

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 65
and with at least 59 days of service under the employment in
Hong Kong. Contributions from employers and employees are
5% each of the employee’s relevant income. The maximum
relevant income for contribution purpose is HK$25,000 per
month. The employees are entitled to the full benefit of the
Group’s contributions and accrued returns irrespective of their
length of service with the Group but the benefits are required
by law to be presented until the retirement age of 65.

The employees of the subsidiaries operating in the PRC are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. The contributions for
the scheme in the PRC are made based on a percentage
of the average salary as advised by the relevant authority in
the PRC. The contributions are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme. The subsidiaries operating in the PRC
also contributed to a local municipal government retirement
scheme for all qualified employees in the PRC. The employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the scheme at the rates specified in the rules.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
schemes in the PRC is to make the retired contributions under
the schemes. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

35. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2014
and 2013, all of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the

Company, are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Allan Electric Mfg., Limited
CHREXREARAA

Allan International Limited*

Allan Mould Manufacturing Limited
SRIREERRATF

Allan Plastic Mfg., Limited
TRBBHERA A

Allan Toys Manufacturing Limited
SRMARRERAR

SR TERE (BN BRRE]

BEXIR (BB)ERAH

Artreal Manufactory Limited

BEXTEERDA

Place of

incorporation or
registration/operations
AMBRLRBDE L

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
ERRAHE/EE

Hong Kong/PRC
B/ ME

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

PRC*
P E

PRC*
P E

Hong Kong
BE

m

Issued and fully paid
share capital or registered capital
ERTRARRASEMER

100 ordinary shares of HK$10 each and
50,000 non-voting deferred shares of
HK$10 each

100 B IR EE10/8 7T 2 & i X %50,000
REREE10ET 2 BREEELTRN

55,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
55,000 B R EE1B T2 &R

100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
100RBREBIB T EER

3,005 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
3,005l BIRAEBEIE L TRAR

270,000 ordinary shares of HK$10 each
270,000 8 R E{E107% 7T 2 & R

Registered capital of USD42,000,000
w1 & 442,000,000 7T

Registered capital of HK$75,000,000
it & 775,000,000/ 70

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
R EREIE T2 ERBR

e UBHRE

HE—_ZT—NF=A=

=S

+—HiEFE

/. X RTZEEHBEATA

N T8 o T e i
=t—H ARFAZZEMBRRIFIE

Principal activities

FEEHR

Investment holding
REZR

Investment holding

BEER

Manufacturing of plastic
injection moulds
EEFEER

Property holding and trading
of household electrical
appliances

RENFERERFESS

Inactive

LEXH

Manufacturing of household
electrical appliances and
plastic parts

YEFEESER
BRITH

Manufacturing of household
electrical appliances and
plastic parts

EEFEERR
BREH

Trading of household
electrical appliances
EHAES %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

/. X AT ZEEHBATA

35. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

(Continued) (#%&)
Place of
incorporation or Issued and fully paid
Name of subsidiary registration/operations  share capital or registered capital Principal activities
WEAREH AR IR BLEELE CRORMERASIEMER TEXRK
Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited ~ Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Trading of household
RREEYEFRATF &8 R FREEIE T2 ERR electrical appliances
BEREE R
Electrical Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ 1 ordinary share of USD1 Inactive
Hong Kong 1REEIETZEER HEE
RBERAHE/BR
Ever Sources Investment Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property holding
EEREBRAA s 100 BREEIE T EEK SSLRUES
Global Express (HK) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investment holding
i (BA)BERRA) BR REREEIET 2 ERR REZR
Good Eagle Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 Investment holding
EEREBRAT B 1REEIBTZ SRR REER
Great Yield Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$ 1 Trading of household
RIRBERRA e 1REEIST LB electrical appliances
BHREER
EEhEESEAEmARL A PRC* Registered capital of HK$2,800,000 Manufacturing and trading
H 1 & 22,800,000/ 1T of household electrical
appliances and
plastic parts
HERBHREESRR
BBTH
BB ChREBEREEER DA PRC* Registered capital of HK$100,000,000  Manufacturing of household
H 1 & 2~100,000,0007% 75 electrical appliances and
plastic parts
EERESEREBEH
HETERE (BM)BRAA PRC! Registered capital of USD3,500,000 Manufacturing and trading
e 7t it & 43,500,000% 7¢ of household electrical
appliances and
plastic parts
EERBHREESRR
BBTH
Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited ~ Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Trading of household
EREXEZEFRARA B 100 FREENE T2 L@ electrical appliances
BHREER
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

35. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

(Continued)

Name of subsidiary
WA R AE

New Prestige Investments Limited*

Ngai Shing (Far East) Plastic &
Metalwares Factory Limited

2 (BR)ZBhEBARAA

Progress Associates Limited *

Hong Kong
KBRZES/B%
Southern Well* (Note) Hong Kong/PRC
aE (BaE) BB/ HE
Total Profits Limited British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RBRLBE/BR
Warran Electric Manufacturing Limited ~ Hong Kong
EREFUEFRLA BB
Well Sincere Investment Limited* Hong Kong
BBRREER LA Bt
¥ Direct subsidiaries
b Wholly foreign-owned enterprises
Note: The subsidiary, Southern Well, was disposed in the current

year as described in note 11.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

Place of

incorporation or
registration/operations
AR B R E

Hong Kong
ER

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands/

mEMBRE SN

BE—T-NE=A=1+—HIFE

(%)

Issued and fully paid

share capital or registered capital
EERTREZRAGZMER

1 ordinary share of HK$1
IRAES T SRR

100 ordinary shares of HK$10 each and
54,000 non-voting deferred shares of

HK$10 each

1008 & I% E B 1078 70 2 X 38 f% % 54,000
BEREEI0B Tz ERERE

1 ordinary share of USD1
IREBEIRTZ SRR

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

RBREEIETZEBR

2 ordinary shares of USD1 each

2REEI R BBK

100 ordinary shares of HK$10 each
100/ B R EE107# 702 SR

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

QRBREEIE T LR

*

#

o

RER

/. X RTZEEHBEATA

Principal activities

FEEHR

Property investment

REME

Property holding
FEME

Investment in securities

BHRE

Property Investment

REME

Investment holding
REER

Provision of transportation
services

FR R E B RS

Investment holding
REER

HEMB QG
2EIEBELE

Kz WEBRAREHERFALE ERH

B R R E R T EERSE
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Financial Summary S E

The following table summarises the results, assets and liabilities of TERAAEBEZE_T—NF=RA=+—H
the Group for the five years ended 31 March 2014. IFhEFEEXEE BEERABERZ-

For the year ended 31 March
BE=-A=1+—-HLFE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-mFE —EF-=F =—ZE-—-F =—E——F ZE-IFTF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FHET
Revenue EEH 2,015,405 2,356,362 2,416,920 2,220,511 1,820,187
Profit before tax BR 3 A A 105,319 133,130 153,451 199,631 234,483
Taxation 1A (21,862) (24,304) (26,314) (38,400) (43,117)
Profit for the year REE 5 F 83,457 108,826 127,137 161,231 191,366
At 31 March
R=BA=+—H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-mE —EF—= —E——F E——% ZE-ZTF

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FHET FRET FHET FAET

Total assets EEREE 1,726,787 1,755,339 1,780,232 1,380,190 1,235,724
Total liabilities BERE 679,621 748,811 838,494 528,249 476,910
Net assets EEFE 1,047,166 1,008,528 941,738 851,941 758,814
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